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Sub: Notice of06th Annual General Meeting ("fAGM’) of the Company lor FY 2023-24
Scrip Code: 973703; [SIN- INEDO1IRGO7023
Dear Sir/Ma‘am,

We wish to inform you that 06" Annual General Meeting ("AGM"] of the Company is scheduled to be held
on Monday, 30" September, 2024 at 11:00a m. at 5F-01, JMD Galleria, Sector-4B, Sohna Road, Gurugram-
122001, Haryana

Pursuant to Regulation 53 of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Reguirements) Regulations, 2015, please find enclosed herewith the Notice of the 068" AGM of Gawar
Khajuwala Bap Highway Private Limited along with Annual Report which Is being sent through electronic
mode today to those Members whose e-mall addresses are reglstered with the Company/ Reglstrar &
Share Transfer Agent/ Depositary Participant|s).

This is for your infarmatiaon and reccrds

Yours faithfully,

For Gawar Khajuwala Bap Highy vay Pvi. Ltd
_ [ i

Vineel Goel
Chief Financial Officer
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NOTICE

Notice = hereby given that the Sixth (06!") Amnual General Meeting of the Members of GAWAR
KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED will ba held on Monday, 30 day of September, 2024
at 11:00 A.M. at S5F-D1, ]MD Galleria, Sector-48, Sohna Road, Gurugram-122001, Haryana to transact the
lollowing businesses:

Ordinary Business:

1. Adoption of Financial Statements:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the financial yvear ended on March
31*, 2024, the report of the Auditors thereon and the Board's Report for the year ended on that date

Z. Appointment of a Director who Retire by Rotation:

To appoint a diréctor in place of Mr. Rakesh Kumar [DIN: 02082036), who retires by rotation and
being slipible, offers himsell for re-appointment

3. Re-appointment of Statutory Auditors for 2 further term of 5 years:

To consider and if, thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following Aesolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant m the provisions of section 135 and pther applicable provisions; if any
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules viz. Companies (Audit and Aoditors) rufes, 2014 as
may be applicable, M/s Gianender & Associates (FRN: O04661N), Chartered Accountants, New Delhi,
be and is hereby re-appointed as Statutary Avditors of the Company lor a further term of five years
hald office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting tll the conclusion of the Eleventh
Annual General meeting of the Company (to be held in 2029) en such remuneration, terms &
conditions as mutually agreed bevween Board of Directors and the slatutory auditors of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all the Dirertors of the Uampany, severally, authorized to do all acts,
deeds ant! things 85 may be required in this behalf

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all the Directors be and are hereby, |aintly or severally, authorized to
execute, sign-and file or to provide certified true copy of this resolution to any other person/authority
25 and when réguired for thelr records.”

Special Business:

4. To Ratify the Remunecation of Cast Avditors

To consider and  thought fir, to pass, with or without medification(s) if any, the [ollowing Resolution
ag an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and any other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, if any, and the rules made thereunder (including sny statutory
modification[s]} or re- enactment thereof for the time being in force), the company hereby ratifies the
remuneration payable o M/s Amit Singhal & Assoclates, Cost Accountants, {Firm Registration No.
101073) ae Hs. 1,00,000/-, who has been appointed es Cost Auditors w conduct the sudit of the cost
recards of the Company, for the Financial Year ending 31 March, 2025, by the Board of Directors of
the Company, 25 decided /ta be declded by the Board




RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all the Directors of the Company be and are hereby, jointly or severally,

authorized o do all acts and take all such steps a5 may be necessary or expedient m pive effect to this
resolution,”

Place: Gurugram

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Date: 06'® September, 2024

N
Hegd. Office; DSS-374, Sector 16-17

inder Humar
Hisar - 125007 (Haryana) Director
E-mail: osgawarroc@gmail.com DIN: 01045284

Add 19, Park Drive, Malibu Town, Sec-47, Sohna
Hoad, Gurugram - 122001, Haryama

Notes:
1 A Member entitled to attend and vote st the meeting 5 entitled to appoint @ proxy o attend and
vite instead of himself and proxy need not to be @ member of the Company,
2

A proxy form enclosed with this notice which §s required to be submitted duly filled and signed at
least 48 houvrs before from the Apnual Geperal Meeting

3 Anendonce Registerfslip will be tabled in the meeting hall with the name mentioned of the
members. All present members and prosies gre reguired to Sign the same:

4  Explanatory Statement and reasons for the proposed special businesses, if any, pursuant to Section
102 [1) of the Companies Act. 2013 are given hereunder.
5  Route Map showing directions to reach to the vence of the Meeting is glven at the and of this Notice.
f.  Corporate Members are requested o send a duly certified copy of the Hoard Resolution
autharizing their representative(s? to attend and vote at the Annual General Moeeting,
Route Map:
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GAMAR KHAJUHALA BAP
" Highway Fut Ltd Cin: H45308HRZ0MBFTCOT 3651

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 10Z[1} of the Companies Act 2013, the lollowing Explanatory Statement sets out
material facts refating to the business under Item No % of the accomponying Notice dated D& September,
2024 convening the Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Company scheduled to be held on 300 Seprember.
2024

ltem Mo, 4

The Company is reguired under Section 148 of the Act to have the audit of its cost records conducted by a
Cost Accountant in Practice. The Beard af Directors of the Company has approved the appointment and
remuneration of M/s Amit Singhal & Associates, Cost Accountants, as the Cost Auditors of the Company ta
ronduct audit of cost recards of the Company for products covered under the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit] Rules, 2014 for the Financial Year ending 319 March, 2025, a1 thelr meéetmg duly held on 219 Aogust,
2024

In aceardance with the provisians of Section 148 of the Act read with Companies {Cost Hecords and Audit)
Hules. 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cest Auditors as approved by the Board of Directors has to
be ratified by the members of the Company.

Accordingly, the consent of the members s sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at ltem No
04 of the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable 1 the Cost Auditors for the Financial Year
ending 31" March, 2025

None of the Directors or KMPs of the Company ar their relatives is concerned or interested fimancially or
otherwise. in this resolution

The Board recommends the reselution set farth i [tem No, 04 for the approval of the Members.

Place: Gurugram FORAND ON BEHALF OF THE BUOARD
Nate: 06 September, 2024

q}iﬁ‘//ff

Repd. Office: 55378, Sector 16-17 RaJindurKumnr
Hisar — 125001 [Maryana) Director
DIN: 01045284

fidd: 19, Park Drive, Malibu Town, Sec-47, Schna
Road, Curugram - 122001, Haryana

E-mail: ¢s.gawarroc@gmalil.cam




GAWAR KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd. Office: D55-378, SECTOR 16-17, HISAR, HARYANA - 125001
(CIN :- U45309HRZ018PTC073651) ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

BOARD'S REPORT

To
The Members,

Your directors have pleasure in presenting fo you the Sbdth Annual Report on the aclivities, Business
and Operations of ths Company logsther with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year
ended 315 Maroh, 2024,

1. RESULTS OF OPERATION OF COMPANY/FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
The financlal resulis of the Company for the financial year ended on 31% March, 2024 are remarked
below for your consideration:

o Rsinakns _
Year ended Year ended
ks 31.03.2024 31.03.2023°
~ Sales and other Income B I . 558234 |  11.073.08
| Profit/ (Loss) before financial charges and depreciation 4,387 82 10,391867
 Financial charges 1486 38 | 147208
- Profit/ (Loss) before depreciation 291143 B.818.60
Depreciation H . i > TEN ! -
Profit (Loss) before Tax 17 EZeia 881859
Prior period adjustment — | : I 2 1
" Profit before Tan, | 2091143 | §p51958
Lo Provein o Tox T -
- Current Tax 96424 ' §7ass
- Deferred Tax 1 (217.41) 1T 127880
Prafit/ (Loss) after Tax 1 216460 T Boessa |
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Shara (Rs.) | a08sndals 1258 and 1258

* Fravious year figure i restaled dus (o the below reason: -
During the current year, the Company has Restated the Financlal Stalements of previous years In
compliance with Ind AS 8 The restatement considers the below changes;

1 Compliance with Ind AS 108 lo give effect of Modificalion Gain/Loss by keeping Original
Effective Interast rate a5 constant year on year basis,

2  Effect of changes in estimates due to applleability of GST on Annuities and Change of GST
rate on construction-services from 0% to 12% o 18%

3 Other minor changes in estimates lo give fair presentation,

2 FPERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, AESOCIATES AND
0 T c ANIES

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture Company, thersfore,
reporting in Form AOC-1 does not apply on the Company.

3. OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE:

The total turnover/other income of the Company for the financlal year 2023-24 is Rs. 5,582.34 lakhs
8s compared to the Re 11,073.09 Lakhs in the preceding financlal year,

During the financial year 2023.24, Company has eamed profit before financial charges and
depreciation of Rs. 439782 Lakhs as against Rs. 10,391.87 Lakhs In the preceding financial year
and profil after ax of Rs 2 164,80 Lakhs 23 against Rs 666583 Lakhs i the preceding financial
yesar

D +91-7303504555 &d: gcl@gawar.in



GAWAR KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd. Office: DSS-378, SECTOR 16-17, HISAR, HARYANA-125001

(CIN :- U45309HR2018PTCO73651) ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24
4. DIVIDEND

In view of the requirement of funds for the operations, your Directors conslder it prudent to not
recommend a dividend to be paid for the financial year under report.

5. TRAMNSFER TQO RESERVES
The Company has proposed to transfer Rs. 2348.35 Lakhs for the financial Year 2023-24, fo the
Reserve account. (Rs. 216460 Lakhs from current year profits and Rs. 183.75 Lakhs from
debenture redemption reserve)

6. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCTION AND PROTECTION FUND

Pursuant {o Sections 124 and 125 of the Act read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund
Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 {"|[EPF Rules”), dividend, i nol
claimed for 2 period of seven years from Lhe date of transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of the
Company, are liable o ba transferred to IEPF

The provislons of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to the Company a= no
unpsaid or unclaimed dividend amount required to be transferred to IEPF during the financial year
2023-24.

7. STATE OF THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

The Company was incorparated on 18.04.2018 for "Upgradation to 2 lane with paved shoulder/ 4
lane of Khajuwala-Poogal Section [Design Chainage O+000 to 30+812) and Poogal-Dantour-
Jaggasar-Gokul-Goddu-Ran|estpura-Charanwala-Naukh-Bap  Section of NH-811 (Design
Chainage 1+430 to 182+728) (Tolal length 212.107 km) under Bharatmala Pariyojna in the State
of Rajasthan on Hybrid Annuity Mode, The construction of the Profect has been completed and
company is now into the operation & maintenance of the Project in terms of the Concession
Agreement signed with National Highways Authorlty of India.

4. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS IF ANY

There has been no change in the business of the Company during the financial year ended 31*
March, 2024.

9. SHARE CAPITAL

There is ne change in the authorised share capilal and paid-up capital of the Company during the
financial year 2023-24,

The authorized share capilal of the Company s Rs. 53.00,00,000/- {Rupees Fifty-Three Crore anly)
divided into 530,00,000 (Five Crore Thirty Lakhns) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each,

The pald-up share capital of the Company is Rs. §3,00,00,000/- (Rupesas Fifty-Three Crore anly)
divided mta 5 ,30,00,000 (Five Crore Thirty Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) sach.

10. CREDIT RATING
ICRA has resffrimed your Company's rating as “ICRA AAA({Stable)” for the Non-Convertible
Debentures of Rs, 235,60 crore on February 27, 2024,

11, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPDRT:

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report as required under Regulation 34 read with
Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of Indie (Listing Obligations and Disciosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulafions, 2015") is annexed herewith as
"Annaxure A". Certain Statements in the said report may be forward-looking. Many faclors may
affect the actual results, which could be different from what the Directors envisage in terms of the

@ +91-7303504555 B<l: gcl@gawar.in
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future performance and ouliook.

12, DIRECTORS/KMPs
As on the date of the report. tha Board comprises of 3 (three) Directors namely.

1. Mr. Raskesh Kumar
2 Mr. Ravinder Kumar
3. Mr. Yogesh Mahajan

Pursuant to the provisions of Sectlon 165(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Acl") and the
Securities and Exchange Board of Indla (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015"), none of the Directors holds Directorships in
more than 20 companies (Public or Private), 10 public companies, Membership of Board
Committees (Audit & Stakeholders Reiationship Committees) in excess of 10 and Chairmanship of
Board Committees (Audit & Stakeholders Relationship Committees) in excess of 5 MNone of the
Directors serve as Independent Director in more than 7 listed companies. None of the Director who
serves as Whole Time Direclor in any listed Company serves as Independent Director In more than
3 listed companies.

Mr. Rakesh Kumar and Mr. Ravinder Kumar are brother in relation.

During the financial year 2023-24, no changes took place in the composition of Board of Directars
of the Company.

Key Managerial Personnel ("KMPs"|
As on tha date of the report, Kay Maragarial Personnal appointed/designated n the Company are

as follows:
Sr. | Name i DIN/Membership . Designation in Company
No. No./PAN
1 | Mr. Yogesh Mahajan ALGPMBES91B ' CEO
2 | Nr Vineet Goel l AX\VPGB333) ' CFO
5

| Mrs. Paoja Mittal | A48700 | CSiCompliance Officer
Further, no appointment/resignation/removal took place in financial year 2023-24,

Ratire by Rotation

As the Company is 8 subsidiary of a Public Company namely M/s Gawar Construction Limited,
therefore, the provisions of Section 152 of Companies Act 2013 are applicable on the Company
end according to Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, one third of the Directors, who are
lizble to retire by rotation, should retire by rotation on the forthcoming AGM. Therefore, Mr. Rakesh
Kumar, Director of the Company would retre by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Mesting
and being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment,

Your Board s of the opinion that continued association of Mr, Rakesh Kumar with the Board will be
of Immense benefit to your Campany and, therefore, recommends his re-appalntment,

13. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
Elgven Meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the financial year 2023-24,
The respective dates of the Board Meetings and Mumber of Directors who attended the meefing

(D: +91-7303504555 B4: gel@gawar.in
gcl@g
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during the financlal ¥Year are as follows:

Sr. No.  Date of Board Meeting  No. of Directors Attended the Meeting
| T 27.042023 | - |
22.06.2023
11.08.2023
1110.2023
03112023
09.11.2023
11.12.2023
2612.2023
01022024
13.02.2024
18.03.2024

»
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14, |INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not required o appoint any
Independent Director on Its Board

15. MEETING OF THE MEMBERS/SHAREHOLDERS

Cne Meeting of the Mambers was held during the financial year 2023-24 The respective date of
the Members Meeting and numbers of Members attended the meeting are as follows:

‘Serial | Dateof  Typeof | ~ Purpose of the Meeting - No.of
MNo. Meeting Meeting Members
Attended
the Meeting
1| pev ~Annual  « Adoption of Financial Statement | 2
September, General = Confirm Interim Dividend
2023 Meeling  « Re-appointment of Director liable to

retire by rotafion,

s Ratification of remuneration of Cost
Auditar

« Alteration of Article of Association

As the amount to be spent against CSR obligation exceed fifty lakh rupees, therefore, the Board
has duly constituted CSR committes in their meeting duly held on 27.04.2023 and Mr. Rakesh
Kumar, Mr. Ravinder Kumar and Mr. Yogesh Mahajan, Directors of Company were duly
2ppointed as the members of the Committes.
The Committee recommend to the Board CSR activity and the same was spproved by the Board
in their maating duly held on 22" June, 2023,

% AUDIT COMMITTEE
As the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable on the Company,
therefore, the Company is not required to constitule an Audit Committes,

< NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION (N&R) COMMITTEE

A the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicabls on the Company,
therefore, the Campany 5 not regulred o constitute M&R Commiftee.

D: +91-7303504555 B: gci@gawarin
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17. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION CRITERIA FOR DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance and [ndividual
directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations. The performance of
the board was evaluated by the Board after seeking Inputs from ail the directors on the basls of
criteria such s the board composition and structure, effactiveness of board processes, information
and functioning, ete

18. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Company's CSR Initistives and sctivities are aligned lo the requirements of Section 135 of the AcL
The brief outline of the CSR policy of the Campany and the Initiatives undertaken by the Company
on CSR activities during the financial year 2023-24 are set out in "Annexure B" of this report In
the farmat prescribed In the Companies (Corporate Soclal Responsibiiity Policy) Rules, 2014,

CSR Folicy is available on the Compeny's website at www gkbhpl.in.

CSR Obligation and spending during the year is as follows:

| Financial Year Profit as per sec 135 of Companies Act,
2013 (Amount in Rs))
2020-21 - 18,37,12.508.00
| 2021-22 1 2201,05,263.00
| 2022.23 . 36,85,91183.00
Averace Profit | 26.08 D2,985.00
2% of Average Profit | 5218.060.00
Last vear unsoent CSR oblination L NIL
Total obligation to be spent In F/y 2023-24 | Acorox Rs. 5220 Lakhs
Spent During the Financial Year | Rs. 52.21 Lakhs

19, CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) OBLIGATION FOR THE FY 2024-25

As on 31st, March, 2024 Company has crossad the limit as mentioned under Section 135 of the
Companies Act 2013; therefore, the Company is under an cbligation lo spend CSR amount towards
Caorporate Social Responsibility In the FY 2024-26,

Statutory Auditors

M/s. Gianender & Associates, Chartered Accountants [FRM: 04861N), wera duly appointad with
your approval as the Auditars of the Company in the Annual General Meating duly held on 30%
September, 2018 for five conseculive years i.e. up to the Annual General Meeting to be held in the
year of 2024,

Therefore, Board recommends to the members fo reappaint M/s. Gianender & Associates for a
further term of 5 Years In the ensuing Annual General Meeting to be held In year of 2024.

The repart of the Statutory Auditors on the Balance Sheel and Profit and Loss Account for the year
aended on 31% March, 2024 is self-explanatory and does not require any staiement from the
Company.

Cost Auditors

The Directors have re- appointed M/s. Amit Singhal & Associates, New Delhi (FRN: 101073) as the
Cost Auditors to audit the accounts relating to Civil Constructions for the financial year ending March
319 2024 in their Board Meeting duly held on 227 Junae, 2023 and the remuneration to be paid to
Cost Auditors as recommend by the Board, proposed to be ratified in the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

(D: +91-7303504555 BL: gdl@gawarin
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Secretarial Auditor

FPursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder,
the Board have re-sppainted Ms Sunita Manish Agarwal Mumbai (Mem MNo: A23524) Practicing
Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct the Secretarial Audit
of the Company for the financial year 2023-24.

Secrefarial Audit Report for the FY2023-24 is attached with this Board report as “Annexure-C".

Internal Auditor

Pursuant to the provislon of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder,
the Board of Directors have appointed CS Pooja Mittal, Hisar (M. No. A48700) Company Secratary,
as the Internal Auditor of the Company for conducting Internal Audit of the Company for the financial
year 2023-24 In their Board Meeting duly held on 22" June, 2023.

21. ISSUE OF RATED LISTED, SECURED REDEEMABLE TAXABLE NON-CONVERTIBLE
DEBENTURES ON PRIVATE PLACEMENT BASIS

The Company has approved to issue rated, listed secured, redeemahble, taxable, non-convertible
debentures ("Debentures”) on a privale placement basis in one or more tranches during the period
of ong year from the date of passing of the special resolution by the members up to aggregate
nominal value of Rs. 245 crores (Rupees wo Hundred Forty-Five Crore only) on 4th Decembaer,
2021 and oul of which 2388 (Two Thousand Three Hundred and Fifty-Five) Senior, Rated Listed,
Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures having face value of Rs. 10,00,000/- per
Debentures under |ssue name 6% GKBHPL2034 |ssued at par, eggregating to Rs. 235,60,00,000/-
{Rupses Two Hundred Thity-Five Crores and Fifty Lakhs only) were allotied/issued on 31%
December, 2021 and the same was conducted on BSE on EBP platform, Detgils for the same are

as follows:
Sr. No. Particulars Descriptions
1 Instrument ' Senior, Rated, Listed,  Secured,
Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures
2 No. of Debenture | 2355
3 Face Value at the time of issue of Rs, 10,00,000/- per Debenture
Debenture
4 Issue Price | Rs, 10,00,000/- per Debenture
5  Maturity Date ' 14 Feb, 2034 '
6  Face Valye as on 3103 2024 ' Rs_B,17,940/- post fifth payment
7 ' Outstanding  Value as on Rs 1926248700/
31.03.2024
8 ' Debenture Trustee | Axis Trustee Services Limited
9  Registrar and Transfer Agent ' Link Intime (India) Private Limited

22. PARTICULARS OF LOAN. GUARANTEE OR INVESTMENTS
During the financial year 2023-24, the Company has granted Loans to other parties as per the
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Acl, 2013 read with Companies (Meelings of Board
and lts Powers] Rules, 2014. The details of Loan/Investments, if any, made under the said Section

are provided in Notes to Standalone Financial Statements.

23. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES AND
RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE
All related party transactions,  any, which were entered into during the financial year ended 31¢
March, 2024 were on arm's length basis and were In the ordinary course of business, therefore, the
provisions of Sectlon 188 of the Companies Act 20123 were not attracled. Further, there are no

D:+91-7303504555 4 gcl@gawar.in
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materially significant related party transactions during the year 2023-24 made by the Company with
Promoters, Directars, or other designated persons which may have a potential confiict with the
interest of the Company at large.

Disclosures with regards o related party transaction, if any, are given in Form AQC-2.

However as per Indign Accounting Standard -24 Related Parly Disclosures also given in the Notes
o the Balance Sheet as on 31 March, 2024,

There are no material related parly transactions which are not in ordinary course of business or
which are not an arm's length basis and hence there is no information to be provided as required
unider Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with Rule B{2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rulas, 2014,

24, ACCESS TO THE ANNUAL RETURN

The copy of the Annual return of the Company under Section 82(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the
Act for the financial year 2023-24 can be accessed through the websile of the Company on

www, gkbhpl in,
25. RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

The Board is in the view that there are no such significant risks exists which may affect the business
of the Company, therefore Company |s nol required fo preparefadopt any palicy relating to risk
management.

26. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS/COURTS, IF ANY

There are no significant material orders passed by the regulators! courts which would impact the
gaing concern status of the Company and its fulure operations.

27. DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

=y

In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors state that:

1. That in the preparation of Annual Accounts, applicabie gecounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanations relating ko material departures, if any;

2. That the Directars had selacted appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistantly
and made judgment and eslimates thal are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profi
of the Company for that period,

3. That the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care lo the besi of their knowledge and
abllity far the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for prevenfing and detecting fraud
and ather irregularities, If any,

4. That the Directors had prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31 March,
2024 on a going concern basis,

5. That the Directors had laid down internal financial controls io be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were aperating effectively,

6 That the Directors had devised proper systems fo ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable faws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

28, MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY
There are no material changes and commitment affecting financial position of the Company which
have occurred bafween the end of the financial year of the Company ie 31" March, 2024 and the
date of this Director's Report,
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29. ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGAE
EARNINGS/ OQUT-GO

The information required under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act 2013, read with the
Companles (Accounts) Rules, 2014 Is provided as follows and forms par of this repor,

A) Conservation of Energy:

d) Company ensures that the operations are conducted in the manner whereby optimum
utlization and maximum possible savings of engrgy Is achieved,

b) No specific investment has been made in reduction in energy cansumption.

¢} As the impact of measures taken for conservation and opltimum utilization of energy are not
guanttative, its impact on cost cannot ba slated accurataly,

B) Technology Absorption:

Company's operations are done by using the [atest Technology. The Company constantly
strives for maintenance and Improvemant In guality of s operations and Research &
Development activities are directed to achleve the Company's goal,

C) Foreign Exchange Earning and Out-Go (Rs. In Lakhs):
Foreign Exchange eamed MIL Previous Year NIL

Forelgn Exchange Used NIL Previous yaar NIL

30. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

REMUMERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL| RULES, 2014

The information required pursuant to Section 187 read with rule 5(1) of Companies
(Appointment and remuneration of Managerial parsannel) Rules, 2014, In respect of employee
of the Company, will be provided upon request. In terms of Section 138 of the Companies Act
2013 the repart and the acceunts are being sent to membears and others entitled thereto,
excluding the information on employess particular which i avallable for inspection by the
Members at the reglstered office of the Company during the business hours on working days
of the Company upto the date of ensuing Annual General meeting. if any member is Interested
in inspecting the same, such member may write to the Company Secretary in advance

(b) INFORMATION AS PER RULE 5(2) OF CHAPTER Xill COMFPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND

REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL| RULES, 2014

No employes was in receipt of remuneration equal to or exceeding Rs, 1,02 Crore per annum
or exceeding R&. 8.5 Lakhs per month, during the financial year ended 31.03.2024,

The Rule 5 (2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Ameandment Rule 2016, with regards to tha delails of top ten employaes with regards o thair
salary in the Financial Year 2023-24 is not applicable on the Company.

31. INVESTOR SERVICES

a8 The Company has appointed Mis Alankit Assignments Limited, New Delhi as Reglstrar and
Share Transfer Agent (RTA) No complainl/ query has been recsived from any of the
sharehoidars.

b) The Company has appainted Link Intimea (India) Private Limited as Registrar and Transfer
Agent (RTA) for the Debentures. No complaint! query has been received from any of the
Debanture holders,
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32. CODE OF CONDUCT

The code of conduct as deecriced under the Companies Acl, 2013 and by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India has been duly followed by the Board Members,

33. DEPOSITS/LOAN FROM DIRECTORS OR THEIR RELATIVE

The Company has not accepted any public deposits within the meaning of Chapter V of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companles (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014

The Company has raised unsecured loen from il hoiding Company namely M/s Gawar
Construction Limited amounting of Rs 125.00 Lakhs as on 31 March, 2024

34. VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(9) & (10) of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations,
2015, your Company has established vigll mechanism and & Whistle Biower Policy to deal with
ingiances of unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's code of
conduct. In staying true to our values of Sirength, Performance and Passion and in line with our
vision of being one of the mos! respected Companies In Indla, the Cempany Is committed o the
high standards of Corporate Governance and stakeholder responsibility. Prolected disclosure can
be made by a whistle blower through ah e-mall or 2 letter in writing to the viglisnce and ethics officer.

35. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
[PREVENTION, PROHIBITION, AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013
Provisions relating fo the constitution of Internal Complalnts Committee under the Sexual
Harassment of Women al Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 are not
applicabie to Campany.

36. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The Company has deployed adequate Internal financial Control Systems in place to ensure &
smooth functioning of its business. The processes and the systems are reviewed constantly and
changed to address the changing regufatory and business environment.

37. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEBIl (Listing and Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2016 ("Listing
Regulafions”) were amended vide notification dated September 07, 2021, providing for the
applicability of Regulations 15 Ip 27, relaling to corporate governance on high value debt listed
entities Since our Company is not a High Value Listed entity, hence Company need nol to gve
disclosure of Corparate Govemance,

38, WEESITE OF THE COMPANY

The Campany maintain a website www gkbhpl.in where.detslled information of the Company is
provided

39. LISTING OF THE COMPANY

The Company is fisted In the debt segment on BSE since 05" Jan, 2022, The Company has duly
paid the Annual Listing Fee and other fees o BSE on time

40. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The Company has made and maintained the cost records as specified by the Ceniral Government
under Seclion 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,
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41. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Secrelarial Standards as issued by the institute of Company Secretaries of India constituted
under section 3 of the Company Secretaries Act, 1980 and approved by Central Government has
been duly complied with

42. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION &7

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company has not purchased its shares or given any loan to
purchase its own shares under Section 87 of the Companies Act 2013,

43, DISCLOSURE

Your Directors state that no disclesure or reporting Is required in respect of the following items as
there were no transactions/events on these items during the financial year 2023-24

& There s no application made or proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2018 during the financial year 2023-24.

b, The requiremant o disclose the details of difference belwesen amount of the valuation dane
at the time of onetime settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or
Financizal Institutions aiong with the reasons thereof, is not applicable.

44, OTHER DISCLOSURES:

(@) The Company has not invited/accepted any deposits from public during the financial year 2023-
24

{t) The Company does not have any scheme of provision of money for the purchase of its own
shares by employees or by trustees for the benefif of employees.

(e} Mo fraud has beaen reporied by the Auditors to the Board.

45. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors place an recard their thanks and appreciation to sll workers, staff Mambers,
executives and business associates for their co-operation and contribution lo the operations of the
Company. The Directors are thankful to the Bankers, Financial Institutions for their continued
support to the Company. The Direclors also place on record thelr sincera thanks to the shareholders
for thelr continued support, co-operation and confidence in the Managemeant of the Company

For and an behalf of the Board

\,

&
- r
Rak e5t Kumar indué mar
Director Director
DIMN:D2082036 DIN: 01045284
Add: 18, Park Drive, Sector-47, Malibu Towne, Add: 18, Park DOriva, Malibu Town, Sec-47,
South City ||, Gurugram-122018, Haryana Sohna Road, Gurugram - 122001, Haryana

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28" May, 2024
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Form No. ADC-2

(Pursuant to cfaise (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule B(2) of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related partles referred to In sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
Including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at amm's length basis: NiL

2. Detalls of material contracts or ammangemant or transactlons al arm's length basls:

[Name of the Related MNature of | Duratlon of the = Salient Terms Date of Amount
'Party and Nature of Contract/ Contractf of the Contract | Approval Paid as
{Ralationship Arrangements/ Arrangements! @ /Arrangements @ by the advanc
Transactions Transactions Transactions Board, If  es, if
. Y L | | Any _any
Gawar Construction ~ Unsecured Long Term - 27 April, -
Limited (Holding Borrowing 2023
(Company) . | | ————— i | | [F—
Gawar Construction  Interest on Short Term = 27" April,
Limited (Holding Unsecurad 2023
| Company) - Borrowing . ! ! !
| Gawar Construction ~ Work Creditors Shart Tarm - 270 April,
| Limited {Holding 2023
| Company] | _ 1T | | |
Gawar Construction Reimbursement | Short Term - 27 April,
Limited (Holding of Expenses 2023
| Company) paid an our
behalf

For and on behalf of the Board

h Kumar RL IndAmr
Diractor Director
DIN:02082036 DiN: 01045284
Add: 18, Park Drive, Sector-47, Malibu Towne, Add: 18, Park Drive, Mallbu Town, Sec-47,
South City ll, Gurugram-122018, Haryana Scohna Road, Gurugram - 122001, Haryana
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LIST OF SHAREHOLDERS
(a8 on 31% March, 2024)

Type of Shares=Equity

Face Value=Rs 10 per Share

5. No. Mame and Address of Shareholders Mo. of Sharas hald

— S

1. M/s. Gawar Construction Limitad 526 58 900
R/o-DSS 378, Sector 168-17, Hisar, Haryana 125001 PR

2. Ravinder Kumar S/o Sh Chhabil Das
R/o-18 Park Drive, Malibu Town, Sec-47, Sohna Road,
Gurugram-122001 100
{Registered Shareholder of Ms Gawar Construction
Limitad)
Total | 63000000

For GAWAR KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

& ;

Hak umar
Diractor
DiN:02082038 DIN: 01045284

Add: 19, Park Drive, Sector-47, Malibu Add 19, Park Drive, Mallbu Town, Sec-47,
Towne, South City |, Gurugram-122018, Sohna Road, Gurugram - 122001, Haryana

Haryana
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ANNEXURE A
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
Industry Perspective vis-a-vis Company
The Company operates primarily in the Infrastructure sector

A. SEGMEMNT-WISE PERFORMANCE

The Company GKBHPL |s a 100% subsidiary of Gawar Construction Limited The SPV was
incorporated on in April 18, 2018 to carry on the business of Upgradation o two-lane with paved
shoulder /four-lane of the Khajuwala—Pocagal secton (Design Chalnage Km 0+000 o Km 30+4B812) and
the Pooga'-Dantour-Jaggasar-Gokul-Coddu-Ranjestpura-Charanwala-Naukh-Bap section of NH-811
(Design Chanage KM 14430 to Km 182+725; total design 'ength 212 107 km) as a part of the
Bharaimala Pariyojana programme in Rajasthan under HAM. The construction and operations period
for the project is two years and 15 years, respectivaly.

The company compleied its project 4 months ahead of the scheduled timeline and s now in the
operational phase.

B. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS, OUTLOOK AND OPPORTUNITIES &
CONCERNS, RISK AND THREAT:
Infrastructure typically encompasses roads, power, raiiways, urban infrastructure and irrigation, amang
others. India's infrastructure development s critical for improving its manufacturing competitiveness,
supporting many sectors ke stesl cement auto real estale, efc. and achieving higher growth overall.
The sheer size and magnitude of major infrastructure developmeant projects dictatle substantial capital
investment The Gavernment introduced significant poloy reforms to augment FOI inflows to further
boosl investment and enhance Infrastructure in the country

India's road network is the second largest in the world This comprises National Highways,
Expressways, State Highways, Major District Roads, Other District Roads and Village Roads

Company |s a speca purpose vehcle incorparated to carry on a specific praject. hence there is no
risk and threat lo the company

C. FINANCE:
The grass revenue of the Company s Rs. 558234 Lekh for the year under review gs compared to
Rs 11,073.09 Lakh for the previous year ended 31 March. 2023 The Company registered a net profit
of Rg, 2 184.80 Lakh as comparad lo net profit of Re B BE5 B3 Lekh for the previcus year ended 31sl

March, 2023
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D.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS:
The Company has maintainad stabillty during the year under raview which reflacis in the key financial

ratin A summary of the same Is as under,

| Particulars 1 3103.2024 | 31.03.2023
Operating Profit Margin% | 7386% | 0368%

" Net Profit Margn®% | 4287% | B145%

Debters Turnover 888 Times | 16 18T imes |
invantory TUmover NA NA =

| Debt Equity Ratio 1.15 Times 144 Times |

|nterest coverage Ratic 318 Tmes 7108 Times
Current Rato 7.223 6741

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY:

The Company maintains & system of wall-established paligies and procedures for intermal cantrol of
operations and activities The Company has appointed Intermal Auditors 1o ensure proper system of
Intemal Control and s adequacy.

HUMAN RESOURCE INTERVENTION

I'he Company has aptimized the manpower 1o the right size The Comgany has drawn a strategic plan
for leadarship development by engaging the repuled agencies and has done couple of programs in
line with the plan The employee somfort survey done internally has glven reassuring resulls due lo
the several employea engagement achivities & salety measures taken during the previous year

HEALTH, SAFETY, SECURITY AND ENVIRONMENT

Health, Safety, Securty and Environment @ glways loocked at with s due serousness along with our
business activilles and all employees are adeguately trained for taking up their individual |ob
accountabilty Company's oparations are well resourced & they comply with the required norms of
Health, Safety Sacurity and Environment During the year under raview, various HAZOP studies and
safety sudits are carried out reguarly by Independent consuitants. Efforls are made at all levels to
COnserve anergy and resources

Foriand on\behalf of the Board
b f/
&\S

Rak Kumar n der Kmar

Director Director

DIN:D20B2036 DIN: 01045284

Add 18 Park Drive, Sector-47 Malibu Towne Add 19, Park Drive Mallbu Town, Sec-47 Sohrz
South City 1|, Gurugram-122018 Haryana Road, Gurugram - 122001, Haryana

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28" May 2024
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Annexure to Director’'s Report

Annexura B

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FY 2023-24
[pursuant fo Comp anies (Corporate Social Responsibilily Policy] Rules, 2014]

1. A Brief outlina of tha Company's CSR Policy, Including ovarview of projects or programs
proposad o be undartaken:

CER Policy of the Company s aimed lo suppont fo the disatdvantage/marginzlized cross seclion of
the soclety by providing epportunities to improve their quality of fife Alss embeddad in jis objsctive
to dermonsirate the care for the community through its focus on education & skill development,
heaith & wellness, Animal Welfare and environmental sustainabliiity. The projects underiaken s well
within the broad framework of Schedule Vil of the Companies Act, 2013

Z Composilion of the CSR Committes;

' 8r | Nama of Director Designation/ | No of CSR | No of iluuting_"
Ho || nature of | Committes attendad during
_directorship Meetings the year
1 Mr. Rakesh Kumar Dirsctor 2 2
2 Mr. Ravinder Kumar | Dirsctor 2 I 2 I
3 | Mr. Yogesh Mahajan | Direclor 2 1 0 |

3. Provide the web-ink where Compaositlon of CSR gommittes, CER Policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are disclased on the websita of the Company: (www.gkbhplin)

4. Frovide the detall of impael assessment of CER Projects carried out In pursuance of sub rule (3) of
rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibllity Pelicy) Rules, 2014,  applicabie (NA)

5. Details of the amount available for sel off in pursuance of sub-rule (3} of rule 7 of the Companias
(Corporate Soclal responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financlal
year, If any: (Nil)

B. Average nst profit of the Company s per sectlon 135(5); Rs. 26,08,02,985/-

7. (8) Two percent of aversge net profit of the Company as per section 135(5); Rs, §2,16,080/-

{b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmers or asctivities of the previous financial
years: NIL

{c}Amount required o be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL
{d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-Tc). Approx. Rs. 52.20 Lakhs
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8. (a) CER amount spent or unspent for the financial year2023-24;
| Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Spent for the | Unspant | Total Amount | Amount transferrad to any fund
Financial amount hald 4 transferred o Unspent | specified under Schedule VIl as
Year 2023-24 | with the | CBR Account as per per second proviso o section
| {in Rs)) Company section 135(8) 135(5)
{in Rs.) Amount Date of MName of Amount Date of
Transfer | Fund | Transfar
Rs. 52.21 NIL . [ - | = - |
| Lakhs I [ I
(b} Detalls of CSR amount spent against ongolng projects for the financial year2023-24:

'Sl.| Name | Rtem Local | Location of | Project Amount Amount| Amount L Mods of Mode of
km of tha from the | arsa the project. durltlm.}alhmtuﬂispam Irti!ranlhrrﬂ:l mplemantation Implamentation -
Project.| list of {Yes/No). for the | the Eb Unspen ¢ - Direct Through
| ]activitiur- project | current CSR (Yes/No), Implamanting

| in {in Rs.). financial, Account Agency
Scheduls Stnta.PIB!rlc!. Year (in| for the rlnmnf CSR
| vAet per number,
Section
135(B) (In
Rs.).
. = | I
11 L7 S| T S~ =I IE-I.| || [~ S| == =
__' Total | | |

(c) Detaijls of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing activity/projects for the financial

year 2023-24:

BLE (2) @ e (5) | (8) 7) (8) .
SI. | Name ofthe Item from Local Locationof = Amount | Modeof | Mode of implementation -
Ne. Project/activity the list of |area the project spent for the implementation! Through implementing

activities (Yes/ project = - Direct agency.

in Na). ﬂhh.:Dlnlrll:Li {in Rs.). (YesiNo). Name. CSR
schadule | ‘ | registration
Vil o the rnumbar,

, : . Act. | : I | |

| 1, Animal welfare | Animal | Yes  Hisar, | Rs. 39.20 Mo Gawar | CSR00018119

| welfare Gurugram, Lakhs Foundation

Palwal, Jhajjar
| (Haryana) _ | |
2 |Promole Heaith Promote | Yes | Dehradun Rs.10 Lakhs| No 'Ramkrishana] CSRO0006101 |
care Haalth m‘ (UK) | Mission
| Ashrama |
3 Promote Health| Promota | Yes | Hisar (HR) Rs. 3.01 No Haryana A CSRO0003053 |
care Haalth cara Lakhs Bharat Vikas |

' | Foundation | !

| Total |Rs. 52.21 Lakhs
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(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads (MIL)

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, f applicable (NA)
{f} Total amount spent for the Financial Year (80+8c+8d+8e) Rs. 52.21 Lakhs

(g) Excess amount for set off, f any (NA)

[ Sl No. Particulars |Amount {in Rs)
. Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) -
| fi) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year -
If {Hi) Excess amount spent for the financial year [{1i)-(i))] -
| (w) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmers or activities of the -
previous financial years, if any
(v) Amaunt available for set off in succeeding financial years [{li}-{1v)] -

8. ([A) Detaiis of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding financial year 2022-23:

'Br. Preceding Amount Amount Amount transferred o any Amount
No. | Financial  transferred to spent in [- fund spacified under ramaining
| Yaar Unspent CSR the | Schedule VIl as per saction | to |
Account under reporting [ 135(6), If any be spant in
I section 135 (6) Financial | Name | Amount | Date of | succeeding
(in Rs) Year(ln Rs)  of | Transfer | financial
Fund yoars {in
| Rs)
1 2022-23 [ NIL {- |- - - ' NIL

(B) Details of CSR amount, spent in the financial year2023-24, for ongoing projects of the
precading financial year 2022-23:

Sr. | Name of Financia | Project | Total lﬁmumt' spent | Cumulative | Status of
No. | Project | Year in | Duration | amount on the project  amount spent the
which (in year)  allocated in the on the project project
the for the reporting at the end of Complete
project | project | Financial Year reporting d
commen | |in Rs.) {(in Rs.) Financial {Ongoing
| ced - ; Year (in Rs.)
1 |- - - - -

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the detaile relating to the asset so
created or acguired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details) - NA

(=
(b)
(&)

id)

Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset{s)
Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.
Details of the entity or public authority or beneficisry under whose name such capital asset

is registered, their addrass etc.

Provide delalis of the capltal assel(s) crealed or acquired (including complete address and

Incation of the capital assel)
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11. In case the Company has fafled to spend the two per cent of the average Net Profits of the last
three financial year or any part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for not spending the
amount in its Board Report. (NA)

12. A responsibility statement of the CER Commitiee that the Implemantation and monitaring of CSR
Palicy, is in compllance with CSR objectives and policy of the Company. (NA)

FDW KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
>
Rake

Kumar
Director
DIN-02082036
Add: 18, Park dnve, Sec-47, Malibu Towne
South City I, Gurugram-122001 (HR)
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Annexure C

SUNITA MANISH AGARWAL
Practicing Company Secretary
Flat No. 1103, Prima Building, Arknde Art Coniplex, Vimay Nugor,
Mira Road (E), Thane, Maharashira 401107
E-marl: essunitaagarwal@gmail.com; Mob: 80809 08634

FORM ND. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Campanies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014
For the Financial Year ended on 31% March, 2024

To,

The Members,

Gawar Khajuwala Bap Highway Private Limited
D55-378, Sector 16-17, Hisar,

Haryana — 125 001

| have conducted the secretarizl audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence o good corporate practices by Gawar Khajuwala Bap Highway Private Limited
(CIN: U45309HR2018PTCO73651) (hereinafter called as “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in @ manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and autharized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the
explanations and clarifications given and representations made by the Management and
considering the online examination of the documents, | hereby report that n my opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31" March, 2024,
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place 1o the extent, in the manner and subject
to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31% March, 2024 according ta the
provisions af:

(i}  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
{li}  The Securities Contracts (Regulalion) Act, 1956 {'SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(i)  The Depositorles Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
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fiv)

fv)

wi)

(vil)

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings;

The following acts, rules and regulations are applicable to the company during the audit
period and same has been complied with:

a, The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021;
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEB| Act’) - Nat applicable as the Company has not filed any
spplication for listing of s shares with any of the Stock Exchanges during the Audit
period:-

a The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

c The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements] Regulations, 2018;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;

e Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2021;

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018;

The management of the Company represented that it has complied with all sector specific
laws, if any, applicable to the Company during the period under review.

| have also examined the compliance with the applicable clauses of the following statutory
provisions/standards/regulations:

g The 5ecurltles & Exchange Board of india (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 — Applicable to the extent of provisions related to Debentures;

b} The Secretarial Standards Issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;
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¢} The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
(BSE)- Applicable to the extent of provisions related w Debentures;

During the period under review and as per the explanations and representations made by the
management and subject to clarifications given, the Company has complied with the provisions
of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

| further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company 5 duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate Notice & given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed
Notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

The compliance by the Company of the applicabie financial laws, like Direct and Indirect Tax laws,
has not been reviewed in this audit since the same have been subject to review by Statutory
Auditors and other designated professionals.

Majority decision s carried through, while the dissenting members' views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

| further report that
There are adeguate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,

regulations and guldelines as also represented by management.

| further report that during the audit period, there were no instances of;
i Public/ Preferential issue of shares/ Right issue/ Sweat equity, etc;
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i. Redemption/ Buy-Back of Securlities;
iil. Merger/ Amalgamation/ reconstruction, etc:
v,  Foreign Technical Collaborations.

| further report that during the sudit period, part redemption of principal of face value of the
Non-Convertible Debentures [NCDs) is in compliance with the applicable provisions of the
Comparies Act, 2013, SEB! Regulations and rules prescribed thereunder.

Smit?Mnni:h Agarwal
Practicing Company Secretary
Membership No: F11024

CP No.: 10097

UDIN: FO11024F000031506

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 02, 2029

This report & to be read with our letter of even date which is aPnexed as “Annexure A” and forms
an integral part of this report,
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‘Annexure &'

To,

The Members,

Gawar Khajuwala Bap Highway Private Limited
DE5-378, Sector 16-17, Hisar,

Haryana — 125 00L

My report of even date & o be read along with this letter,

1 Maintenance of Secretarial record & the responsibility of the management of the company. My
responsibility & to express as opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. | have followed the audit practice and process as wers appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test check basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records, 1 believe that the processes and practices,
| followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion,

3. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of Accounts of
the Company.

4. Wherever required, | have obtained the Management regfesentation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

5 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, Rules, Regulations,
standards & the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test check basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report & neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

>

Sunita Manish Agarwal
Practicing Company Secretary
Membership No: F11024

CP No.: 10097

UDIN: FO11024F000031506

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 04, 2029



GIANENDER & ASBOCIATES
CHARTERSTACCOUNT ANTE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of GAWAR KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
Reporton the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS Financial Statements of GAWAR KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31% March, 2024
and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Inceme), the Statement of
Changes In Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind
AS Financlal Statements, Including a summary of material accounting policy Information and other
explanatory Information for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesald Ind AS Financlal Statements glve the Information required by the Companles Act,
2013 In the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards{Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affalrs of the Company as at 31% March,
2024 and its profits, total comprehensive Income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {("SAs™) specified under
section 143{10) of the Companias Act, 2013. Our responsibllities under those Standards are
further described In the Auditor's Responsibliities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
section of our report. We are Independent of the Company In accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indla together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
rasponsibilities in accordance with these regquirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note No. 33 of the financial statements which provides that Company has
restated the financial statements for the current year as per applicable IND AS,

Our opinfen Is not modified In respect of this matter.
Information other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’'s Board of Directors Is responslble Tor the preparation of the other infermation. The
other information comprises the Information induded in the Board's Report including Annexures
to Board's Report, but does not include the Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditor's report
thereon

Cur apinlon on the Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other informatlon and we do
not express any form of assurance condusion thereon,
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Llis GIANENDER & ASSOCIATES
CHARTEREDACCOUNT ANTS

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility 18 to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information k& materially
Inconsistant with the Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course
of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are reguired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors s responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes
In equity and cash flows of the Company In accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in Indla, including the Indlan Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also incudes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implamentation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS Financial Statement that glive a true and fair view
and are free from materlal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind A5 Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liuidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financlal reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

COur objectives are ta obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financlal Statements
a2 @ whole are fres from material misstatament, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance s 2 high level of assurance, but
it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing ("SAs”)
wiil always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

» Identify and assess thz risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is suffident and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of intermal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also res Sufor expressing our opinion on whether the
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Company has adeguate intemal financial controls system In place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as 2 going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditer’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS
Financial Statements or, If such disclosures are Inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or canditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concarn.

» Evaluate the gverall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS Financial Statements,
Including the disclosures, and wheather the Ind AS Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events In @ manner that achieves far presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS Financial Statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes It probable that the economic decislons of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the Ind AS Financial Statements may be Influenced. We consider guantitative materiality
and gualitative factors in:

(i planning the scope of our audit wark and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS Financlal
Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant
deficiencies n Internal control that we Identily during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical reguirements regarding Independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reascnably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A&’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

2} We have sought and obtained all the infarmation and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and bellef were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

b} 1In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in
Para 2{g)(vi) of "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report.

€) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes In Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account.
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d)

g}

In our opinfon, the aforesaid Ind AS Financlal Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with related rules as amended fram
time to time,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors Is disqualified as on
315t March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the Intemal financial controls with reference to Ind AS
Financial Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in "Annexure B which expresses an unmodified opinion.

With respect to the Other Matters to be included in the Auditor's Report In accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and o the best
of our Information and according to the explanations given to us:

I. The Campany has na pending litigation which would impact its financial position;

fi. The Company does not envisage any material foreseeable losses In long-term contracts
including derivative contract requiring provision;

ill. There were no amounts which were reguired to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

V.
a8) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company te or In any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwlse, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly
or Indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (*Ultimate Beneficlaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign
entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities |dentified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party ("Ultimate Beneficlaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
belleve that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11({e), as provided
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

i. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used TALLY

PRIME as the accounting software for maintaining its booles of account which has a feature
of recording audit trall (edit log) faciity. The same was enabled on 10 May,2023 and
has operated up to the year ended 31st March 2024, for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit tral feature being tampered with.
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Further, as proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 Is applicable
from 1st April 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory reguirements for record
retention Is not applicable for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024.

3. With respect to the other matters to be induded in the Auditor’s Repaort in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended; In our opinion and to the
best of our Information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has
not paid the managerial remuneration during the year.

For Gianender & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 004661N)

=y

e

M1 —
G. K. Agrawal
(P artner)

(M No. 081603)
Place: New Delhi

Date: 2B'"May,2024
UDIN: 24081603 BKAHY654H

Page 5 of 12
AR - GKBHPL FY 23-24
Piot Neo. 6, Site No. 21, Geeta Mandir Marg, New Rajender Negar, New Delhl - 110060
Ph: O11- 42412008, 43038497, Emall; gka_ma@yahoo.com; Info.glanender@gmall.com



IHBA

GIANENDER & ASSOCIATES
CHARTEREDACCOUNTANTS

Annexure A’ to the Independent Auditor's Report of GAWAR KHAJUWALA BAP
HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED for the Year ended as on 31*' March, 2024

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “"Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report on even date: -

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of
audit, we state that:

I. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Eguipment, Right-of-use Assets and
Intangible Assets:

a) (A) The Company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment’s. Hence, reporting
under paragraph 3(i}(a)(A) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(B) The Company does not have any Intangible Assets. Hence, reporting under
paragraph 3(I)(2)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) The requirement for physical verification doesn’t arise as the Company does not have
any Property, Plant and Equipment’s. Hence, reporting under paragraph 3(i)(b) of the
Crder is not applicable 1o the Company.

g} The Company has no immovable properties other than properties where the Company Is
the lessee. Hence, reporting under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order is not 2pplicable to the
Company.

d) The requirement for revaluation deesn't arise as the Company does not have any
Property, Plant and Equipment's B Intangible Assets. Hence, reporting under paragraph
3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

g) There arg no proceedings which have been initiated or are pending against the Company
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
(2s ameanded in 20168) and rules made thereunder. Hence, reporting under paragraph
3{i)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

a) The Company is engaged in the business of infrastructure development, operations and its
maintenance and there Is no inventary in hand at any point in time. Hence, reporting under
paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital imits, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Hente, reporting under paragraph 3(ii)
(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

a) The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security, advances
in nature of loans to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties.
However, the Company has granted unsecured loans to a companies and other parties In the
nature of loans during the yvear
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Reporting under para 3 (iii)(a)(A) and (B) is as follows:

Rs. In lakhs Guarantee Security Loans | Advances in |

._ | |
Aggregate |
amount granted/ - - -
provided during
| the vear
= Subsidiaries = - = -
- Joint Ventures = % £ =
| - Associates - - -
|- Others S| : 5420 | =
Balance
outstanding as at
balance sheet
date in respect of |
| gbove cases
- Subsidiaries - - - -
- Jeint Ventures - - - -
- Associates | - - - -
|-Others |

nature of loans

- - - -

b} In our opinion the investment made and the terms and conditions of the grant of loans and
advances in the nature of loans during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest
of the Company.

c) On the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given
the repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or
receipts have been regular,

d) On the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount
for more than ninety days in respect of loans given,

&) On the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, thare is no loan or advance
in the nature of loan granted falling due during the year, which has been renewed or extended
or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans glven to same parties.

f) On the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand ar without specifying
any terms or period of repayment,

The Company has not entered into any transaction in respect of loans, investments, guarantee
and securities, which attracts compilance to the provisions of the sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Hence, reporting under paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable o
the Company.

The Company has not accepted deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits and the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under. Hence,
reporting under paragraph 3(v) of the Order Is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company prescribed by the
Central Government under sub-section (1) of Saction 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities
carried on by the Company and we are of the opinion that prima-facie the prescribed records
have besn maintained. We have, however, noct made a detailed examination of the cost records
with the view to determine whether they are accurate or complete,
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In respect of statutory dues:

a) The Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state Insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax; duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory
dues to the appropriste authorities. As on 31% March, 2024, there are no undisputed statutory
dues payables for perlod exceeding for a peried more than six month from the date they
become payable.

b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have net been deposited on
account of any dispute,

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded Income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year In thie tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

In respect to the borrowings:

a) The Company has not defauited in repayment of loans or other borrowings or In the payment
of interest thereon to any |ender,

k) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

c) The Company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the
purposes for which they were obtained.

d) On an overall examination of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company, funds raised
on short term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes
by the Company.

e) On an overall examination of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company, the Company
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations
of Its subsidiaries, assoclates or joint ventures,

f} The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held In ls
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

a) The Company has not raised the money by way of initial public offer/ further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year.

b} During the year, the Company has not made any preferentlal allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.
Hence, reporting under paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order Is not applicable to the Company.

a) According to the information and explanations glven to us by the management which have
been relied by us, there were no frauds on or by the Company noticed or reported during the
period under audit.

b} No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Audtors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.
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i,

*11,

®iv,

V.

v,

wviii.

xix,

A

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Hence, reporting under paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

GIANENDER B ASSOCIATES
HARTEREDACCOUNTANTS

All transactlons with the relsted parties are |n compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the detalls of such transactions have been disclosed
in the Ind AS Financial Statements as reguired by the appllcable accounting standards.

a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an adequate internal audit
systermn commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b) We have considerad the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the perlod
under audit, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures,

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 is
not applicable to the Company.

a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). Hence, reporting under paragraph 3({xvi) (a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

bl The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financlal or Houslng Finance activities.
Hence, reporting under paragraph 3{xvi) {b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

¢} &d) The Company is not a Care Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations

made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under paragraph 3{xvi) (c) & (d) of
the Order Is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not Ihcurred any cash losses in the current financlal year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
reporting under this clause is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial asseats
and payment of financial liabillties, other Information accompanying the Ind AS Financial
Statements and further strengthened by financial support assurance provided by the Parent
Company to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attentlon, which causes us to
belleve that any material uncertalnty exlsts as on the date of the audit report that Company s
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of Balance Sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the Balance Sheet date,

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting Is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all llabllities falling due within a period of
n;rf year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.
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GIANENDER & ASSOCIATES
CHARTEREDACCOURTANTS

XM, During the year, the Company has no unspent amount that is required to be transferred to Fund
specified In Schedule VII to the Companies Act in respect  both ongolng and other than
ongoing projects. Hence, reporting under the paras’ 3 (xx) (a) & (b) are not applicable.

¥ Paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company as the Ind Financial Statements
under reporting are not consolidated Ind AS Financial Stetements.

For Gianender & Associates
Chartered Accountants
{Firm‘s‘!Regist‘raﬁm No. 004661N)

)

(M No. 081603)
Place: New Delhi

Date: 28% "May, 2024
UDIN: 24081603 BKAH YE5FIH
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IH A GIANENDER & ASSOCIATES
- SHARTEREDACCOUNTANTS

ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in our Report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-saction 3 of Saction
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the Internal financlal controls with reference to Ind AS Finandal Statements of
GAWAR KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company") as of 31% March,
2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS Flnancial Statements of the Company for the
yvear ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the Internal control with reference to Ind AS Financlal Statements eriteria
established by the Company censidering the essential companents of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note an Audit of Intermal Financigl Controls with reference te Ind AS Financial
Statements Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note®).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as reguired under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors" Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal financial controls with
reference to Ind AS Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit In
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed
to be prescriped under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal finencial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, bath issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Mote require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal financial controls with reference
to Ind AS Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the
intermal financial controls system with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial
Statements included abtaining an understanding of Iinternal financial controls with reference to
Ind AS Financial Statements, assessing the risk that 2 material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk,
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financlal Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate to provide &

basis for our audit opinfen on the Company’s Internal financial controls system with reference to
Ind AS Financial Statements.
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IRmiA GIANENDER & ASSOCIATES
L AARTEREDACCOUNTANTS

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS Financlal Statements

A& Company's internal financial control with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Ind AS Financlal Statements for external purposes In accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to Ind AS
Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintepance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and falrly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only In accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and
{3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acgulsition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have & material effect on the
Ind AS Financlal Statements,

Inherant Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS Financial
Statements

Because of the Inherent limitations of intemal financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial
Statements, Including the possibility of collusion or Improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may pccur and not be detected, Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with refererce to Ind AS Financial Statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financtal control with reference to Ind AS
Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes In conditions, or that the
degres of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinlon, the Company has, in all material respects, an adeguate Intemal financial controls
system with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements and such internal fnanclal controls with
reference to Ind AS Financial Statements were operating effectively as at 31% March, 2024, based
on the internal control with reference to Ind AS Financlal Statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of Internal control steted In the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Ind AS Financial Statements Issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Gianender & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(M No. 0B1603)
Place: New Delhi
Date: 28 May, 2024
UDIN: 24081603 BKAHYGS5FI4
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GAWAR KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd. Office: DS5-378, SECTOR 16-17, HISAR, HARYANA - 125001
(CIN :- U45309HR2018PTCO73651) ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

Balance Sheat as at 315t March, 2024
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GAWAR KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd. Office: DS5-378, SECTOR 16-17, HISAR, HARYANA - 125001

(CIN :- U45309HR2018PTCO73651)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024

{all figuros ore stated b Rs. Lakhs, uniess otharwise stated)

L Income
FRevanue rom operafions 19 504044 10,847.58
Qther Income 20 53280 2258
Total Income 1) 558234 11,073.00
Il Expsnses
Comiract Cont iyl 1,074,438 &20.78
Employee benefi expense 2 2844 544
Finance costs - | 1,485.38 147208
Deprocistion and amoriization expanses - -
Qther expgnses ] 8159 5500
Total exponses (i} 26705 2,183.50
it Profit { {Loss) before Tax {1 - 1) 251143 B,013.52
V. Loss: Tox expense 2%
(1) Cusrent tax o54.24 &7328
{2) Dafared tax (217.41) 1,279,850
V. Profit / (Losa) for the parlod {II-IV) 2,184.50 £,8665.83
VL Other comprehiensive income
Remeammements of the defined banelit plars
Totsl other comprobénsive income
Vil Totsl comprehensive Income for the pariod (V+VI) 2164.60 6685.83
Vill. Esrnings por share (Face Value © 0i- par shara) a
(1) Basiz (n Rs) 4.08 1258
(&) Dausad (in Re) 4.08 1288
“Restatod
The motes refamed above are the intogral pant of the financlal siatement
A per cur report of even date attached Far and on behatt of the board \ /
'
W
f@%
mar Kumar
Director
DiN-CriDa5284 DiN-02082036
nkﬁd@{sigwf .,y
Yogesh Mahajan —
Diractor and Chief Exsculive Officer Company Secretsny
DiN-0B206094 ICEl M No. A45700

foh—

Vinest Goal
Chiaf Finencial Officer

Place : Gurugram
Diate: 258 May, 2024
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GAWAR KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd.Office: DS5-378, SECTOR 16-17, HISAR, HARYANA-125001
(CIN :- U45309HR2018PTCO073651) ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on 31st March, 2024
{all figuran are stated in An. Lakhs, unless otharwise stated)

For tha yoar snded on | For o your ended on
Ee— JtstMarch 2024 | 31t March 2023
1]
Nat prafit befors Tax 281143 B.810.59
|justment for;

ddl; Fingnce cost 1488 38 147208
Less: inarast income on Loan Given [tBB.28) -
Less: Wterest income on FD 356.00 (Y8543

ating Profit Befors Working Cepltal Chengea SHFEES nrm:n]'
Incre@se{Decraase) in other fnancial f=biltes 07 (3.51)

Increassi(Decrease) in tads payshiss - ooren (308d) 1884

Incresse/{Decraase] in other curren! Rapmties {14122) 133.08
cronse)/Decresse in ofher non-currént financsl nssets 308321 {2:202.00)

eaga)Decreass in olher cumment Aisets 181004 1.118:42

{increase)iDecrease. in oiher cumen! Bx Rasets 15247 51114
(ncrease)Decresss |n other cument financial assets 108,39 {1.007.65)
Increase)/Decreass n Tade recavabls (13 90 (158,08,

Genersted From Operations .
Diect (axes pald I1.074.141 [1088.411
Net Cesh from Opsmaling Activities: (ny T R ——ﬂ?ur.n'
B. Cash Flow From Investing Activites
interesl income 358,00 185 43
Mt Irvestmants. N fxed deposlis (1.307.20) (1,085.38)
interest Income 8n Loan and advances given 188 28 -
Nat Cash from Investing Activities: 8) (78LEi §58.861 |
C. Cashflow From Flnancing Activities

Repayment of securad borrowings {1.837.61) {1,715.00)

Frocesds from unsecunsd bomowings 15100 B813.00
Repayment of unsecursd bormwings {28 00} {t,718.08)
Faymant for intedm dividend . (1,843.00)
Intareat charges psid (1. 208.84) [1LB73.00)
Diher finance chamges pakd 1135 8@ (4 B8
Nt Cash from Financing Activitias: =] {3184 5] (B 340 83)

:h'l Incroasel{Decregse) in Cash And Cash Equivalants During The Yaar 828,78 398,60

|Opening cash and csh equivibenis 340 2680
Closing cash and cash equivalents 388318 38340
Not Camh Flow 362878 336,60
st st March, 2024 | As at 318t Marsh, 2003

-

§318 113.98

428 448

- 164 30

393559 £0
m'—ﬁ'

1. Tho sbove standalone Coah Fow Statement has beon prepared under fhe “indiect Maihod® a8 set out in Indisn Acoounting Sianderd
find AS) -7 *Siatameant of Cash Flowa"

2 Flgures n brackats represent cash outfiow.

3 For Reconaillafion of Financlal Actities (nd A5-7) refer note: 28

As per our roport of oven date attached For and an behalf of tha Board
-
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ﬁ'm and Chio! Executieg Cficar
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GAWAR KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd. Office: DSS-378, SECTOR 16-17, HISAR, HARYANA - 125001
(CIN :- U45309HR2018PTC073651) ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

Statement of Ghlnﬂll- in Equilq as at 31st March, 2024
&l Aguras are stated in Fa. Lakhe, uniass othsrwisa siated)

A Shery Capitak
Equity share capital =
[[R——— o gty | Tore v s MUMIMR, | e the yaar snted on tatAprl 1003
- ; : T T AT T
o gl ] el B BTl Lt T
pelng fooe ylug of Ae 100
nnco ol tha beginaing of the reporting perod £,30,00,000 530000 5,30,00.000 530000 5,30,00,000 5,300.00
ot i eglify share Capital 88 o price poriod aros - - - - a -
mnct Dualenca st the beginning of Bw meporting period 5 ,30,00,000 5300.00 §,30,00.000 £.300 00 £.30,00,000 5:300:00
TChanges n equily share capial during e year . B . . = .
Balanco af s end of e mporing pariod 5,20,00,000 5,300.00 §,30,00,800 530080 §,30, 00, 400 534000
W, 10 fior shar caplial disciasures
8, Othar Equity
“Partiealars Fansrves mnd Bk
_H.‘ Tatai
Balznca at the beginning af Ma reporing pariod La. 04,04 2023 FELIE) 1E22 58 1604 48 |
Chasges I acocanling paicy o priar periad armrs . 7400 7400 |
Fenstatad halafce @1 beginning of ihe mpodting perod 2,28150 1,990.58 4,270,408
Tots comprafentiva moomm lor e year - ITaEaY FaLlE
Enangms m oocouring poloy o gror parod anrare A Bim 48 3510 46
Dividards . (1,643 00) [1,B42.00)
Transle: cuting Be gear A74,50 7180 -
Fﬁlﬂ Baltnce @ o 3101 March 2023 1m0 EALLEL [ETTE]]
Ttta comprabansiss Feoma bor (he curert yeo - 7 164 60 216460 |
Div dnes - . -
Trarelar furing the nar AERTS) hL =] 3
{Bainnce aw ot 318l March 3034 1,925.35 82060 11, 460.01
Ax par our rapart of svan date attached For and on bahalf of the board l\ v/
Far Glanundor & Associsien é. I[ Kumar
Crarisned Accouni@nis [ rocter
Firm Angistration No.B&B&1N DN DDA EZBE NN r2OBACSE
- = ] a
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A ACO P L LA
de A oo ==
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GAWAR KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd. Office: DS5-378, SECTOR 16-17, HISAR, HARYANA - 125001
(CIN:- U45309HR2018PTC073651) ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

1. Corporate Information

Gawar Khajuwala Bap Highway Pvt. Lid s a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) incorporated on 18th day
of April 2018 for the purpese of upgradation of 2 lane with paved shoulder/4 lane of khajuwala - poogal
section (Design Chainage 0+000 %o 30+812) and Poogal - Dantour - Jeggasar - Gokul - Goddu -
Ranjeetpura - Charanwala - Naukh - Bap section of NH-911 (Desian Chainage 14430 b 182 +725)
(Total Length 2122.107 Km) under Bharatmala Pariyojna In the state of Rajasthan on Hybrid Annuity
Mode. As per the SCA, NHAI grants to the Company exciusive right, licanse and authority to construct,
operate and maintain the project during the Consfruction Period of 730 (Seven Hundred and Thirty)
days and Operation Perlod of 15 (Fifteen) years commencing from COD,

The Financial Statement were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of directors on 28%
May,2024.

r & Material Accounting Policy Information
201 Basis of preparation
(a) Compliance with IndAS

The Company’s financial statements comply in all material respects with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other ralevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act).

{b) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following tems

| __Mems = _Measurement basis

 Certain financial assets and liabilities 1 ;‘-'.1!'_!'?"':'?

vt ot vy |5 S )
Assets held for sale | Fair value less costs (o sell !

(c} Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with IndAS requires the management to
make estimates and assumptions considered In the reported amounts of assets, liabiiitles (including
contingent liabilities), ncome and expenses. The Management believes that the estimates used In
preparation of the financlal statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ due fo
these estimates and the differences betwean the actual results and the estimales are recognised in the
perieds in which the results are known / materialize. Estimates include the useful lives of property plant
and equipment and intanglble fixed sssets, allowance for doubtful debts/advances, future obligations In
respect of retirement benefit plans, provisions for resurfacing obligations, fair value measurement etc.

202 Presentation of financial statements

The Balence Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss ane prepared and presented in the format
prescribed In Schadule 11l to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The Cash Flow Statement has been
prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows", The disclosure
requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed
in Schedule 1l fo the Act are presentad by way of notes forming part of accounts along with the other
notes required to be disclosed under the nolified Accounting Standards.

The financial statements are presented in 1 and all values are rounded to the nearest

@: +91-7303504555



GAWAR KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd. Office: D55-378, SECTOR 16-17, HISAR, HARYANA - 125001
(CIN :- UA5309HR2018PTC073651) ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

2.03 Revenua recognition

) The Company derives revenue primarly from fixed price construction contracts. Afler the
construction of the projects. company will recelve annuity from the client , which will be recognise as
revenue in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the concession peried of the respective projecis based
on the implicit rate of return embedded In the projected cash flows. Such Income I8 duly adjusted for
any variation in the amount and timing of the cash flows in the period in which such variation occurs.
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and exciudes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of promised
products or services o customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to
recelve in exchange for those products or services.

The Company has applied the guidance in Ind AS 115, 'Revenue from Coniracts with Customers’, by
applying the revenue recognition criteria for each of the distinct performance obligation.

The arrangements generally meet the criteria for considering construction contracis and related
services as distinct performance obligation. For allocating the consideration, the Company has
measured the revenue in respect of distinct performance obligation at Iis stand-alone selling price, In
accordance with principles given in Ind AS 115.The Company recognizes revenue when it transfers
conirol over a product or a service o a customer. The method for recognizing revenues and costs
depends an the nature of the services renderad:

The Company salisfies a performance obligalion and recognises revenue over time, if one of the
following criteria I8 mat:

The customer simultanecusly receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's
performance as the Group performs; or

The Company's performance creatés or enhances an assel thal the customer conlrols as the assel Is
created or snhanced; or

The Company's performance does nol create an asset with an altemnative use o the Company and an
entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed io date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at
the paint in time al which the performance obligation |s satisfled,

Fixed Price Contract

Revenues from fixed-price contracts are recognized using the “percentage-of-completion” method.
Percentage of completion ls determined based on projéect costs incurred to dale as a percentage of total
estimated project costs required fa completa the project. The cost expended (or input) method has been
used to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input and
productivity.

if the Company does not have a sufficient basis to measure the progress of completion or 1o estimate
the lotal contract revenues and costs, revenue & recognized only 1o the extent of contract cost incurred
for which recoverability is probable imespective of the stage of completion of contract,

Revenue /s measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts, performance bonuses, pricé concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract
with the customer. Revenus also excludes taxes coliected from customers.

In accordance with Ind AS 37, the Company recognises an onerous contraci provision when the
unavoidable cosis of meeting the obligations under a contract exceed the economic benefits to be
received
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Cenlract assels are recognised when there |s excess of revenue earned over billings on confracls.
Contract assets are classified as unbllled recelvables (only act of inveleing is pending) when there s
unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time [s required, as per confractual terms

Uneamed and deferred revenue ("contract liabllity™) is recognised when there Is billings in excess of
revenues. Advance payments received from customers for which no services are rendered are
presented as advance from customers

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and requirements.
The Company reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original contract, basis which the
transaction price could be allocated to a new performance obligation, or fransaction price of an existing
obligation could undergo a change. In the event transaction price is revised for existing obligation, a
cumulative adjustment i accounted for.

The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by Industry verlicals, geography
and nature of services

The Company accounts for volume discounts and pricing incentives fo customers by reducing the
amount of revenue recognized at the time of ssle

Revenues ara shown net of Goods & Service Tax, epplicable discounts and allowances.

b) Interest income Is recognized on a time proportion basis taking Info account the amount
outstanding and the applicable EIR. Other income is accounted for on accrual basis, Where the recaipt
of income |s uncertain, it Is accounted for on recealpt basis.

c) Dividend income [s recognized in the statement of profit and loss on the date that the
Company’s right to receive payment is established.

2.04 Cash flow statemant

Cash flow stalemanl is prepared segregating the cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities, Cash flow from cperating activities is reporied using indirect method. Under the indirect
method, the net profit{loss) Is adjusted for the effects of.

{a) transactions of a non-cash nature;
{b) any deferrals or accruals of past or future cperating cash recelpts or payments and,
{c) all other items of Income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows.

The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated
based on the available information. Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) are
reflected as such in the Cash Fiow Statemant, Those cash and cash equivalents which are not
available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet are also Included under this category with a
specific disclosure.

205 Property, plant and equipmant (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
cumulative impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the assel's camying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when i Is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will fiow
to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured refiably. Cost includes expenditure that is directly
atiributable and for qualifying assets, borowing costs capltalised in accordance with the Company's
accounting policy. Such properfies are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
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Depreciation on assets have been provided on stralght-ine basls based on the life of asset as specified
in the Schedule || of the Companles Act, 2013, Depreciation on additions/ deductions Is calculated pro-
rata from/ o the day of additions/ deductions,

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal. Any galn or loss arlsing on the
disposal of an llam of property plant and equipment Is determined as the difference betwesan the sale
proceads and the carrying emount of the asset and Is recognised In the statemant or profit and loss,

Depreciation charge for impaired assets (s adjusted in future perods In such a manner that the revised
carrying amount of the asset is allocated over its remaining useful life.

206 Rights under SBervice Concession Arrangements Annuity Projects (Unconditional right
to recelve cash from Authority)

Where Company has acquired contractual rights to receive specified daterminable amounts, such rights
are recegnisad and classifled as “Financial Assets”, even though payments are contingent on Company
ensuring that the Infrastructure meets the specified quality or efficiency requirements, Such financial
assels are classified as "Recsivables sgainst Service Concession Arangements”.

Ay Viability Gap Funding (VGF) in the form of equity support in connection with project construction s
accountad as a recelvable gnd is adjustsd fo the extenl of actual recelpts.

Fre-operative expenses including administrative and other general overhead expenses that are directly
aftributable lo the development or acquisition of right under service Concesslon Arrangements are
aliocated and recognised and classified as *Financial Assets'.

a7 Borrowing costs

Borrowing cosis include interes! calculated using e effective interest method, amortisation of ancillary
costs incurred and exchange differences arising from forelgn currency borrowings to the extent they are
regarded es an adjustment to the interest cost  Cosis in connection with the borrowing of funds 1o the
extent nol direclly related to the acquisition of qualifying @ssets are charged lo the Consolidated
Statement of Frofit and Loss over the tenure of the foan. Borrowing cosis, aflocated to and ulilized for
acqulsitton, construction or production of gqualifying assels, peraining t© the period from
commencement of activities relating o canstruction / development of the qualifying esset up to the date
of capltalization of such ssset are added to the cost of the assets. Capitalization of borrowing cosis ls
suspended and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods whan active
davelopment activity on the quallfying assets I8 Interrupted,

28 Earnings per shara

Basic eamings per share |s computed by dividing the profit / (loss) for the year by the welghtad average
number of equity shares cutstanding during the year Diluted eamings per share Is computed by dividing
the profit/ (loss) for the yeer as edjusted for dividend, Interest and other charges b expense or income
{net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potental equity shares, by the weighted average
number of equity shares considerad for deriving basic sarnings per share and the weighted average
number of aqulty shares which could have been lssusd on the conversion of all diiutive polential equity
shares. Polenlial equlty shares are deemed lo be dilutive only If thelr conversion to equity shares would
decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilulive equity shares
are deemed Ip be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been |ssued at a later
dale. The dilutive potentlal sguity shares are adjustad for the proceeds recelvable had the shares been
actually Issued al fair valug (le. average markel value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential
equity shares are determined independently for each perlod presented The number of equily shares
and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splils / reverse share splils and bonus
shares, as approp riate,
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28 Income taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax payable on current year's taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes In deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
o temporary differences and to unused tax losses. The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of t=x laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management
periodically evaluales, positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation Is subject fo interpretation and provisions are established where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilites and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However deferred income tax is
not accounted i it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or lability that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred Income tax is
determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacled by the end of the
reporting period and are expected o apply when the related deferred income tax asseliliabliity &=
rezlised or sefiad.

Deferred fax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused fax losses only
if it is prabable that future taxable amounts will be avallable to utlise those temporary differences and
losses,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax fiabilities are offset, whan the entity has a legally enforceable right
o offset current lax assets and liabllities and when the deferred tax balances reiated to the same
authority.

Current and defered tax is recognized in Statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that i relates
to items recognised In other comprehensive income or directly in equity wherein the related tax is also
recognised n other comprehensive income or directly In equity.

2.10 Provislons, contingent llabilities and contingant asseis

A provision js recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of pasl evenls and it |s probable that an outfliow of resources will be required to setile the obligation in
respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.

The amount recognised a3 a provision s the best estimate of the consideration required o setile the
present obligation al the end of the reporiing period, taking inlo account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When z provision is measured using the cash flows estimated o settie the
presant obligation, Bs carrying amount is the presant value of those cash flows (when the effect of the
time value of money i material).

When some or all of the economic benefits reguired lo settle a provision are expected 1o be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised a3 an asset [ it iz vidually certain that the relmbursemeant
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Conlingent lisbllities are disclosed in notes in case of a present obligation arising from past events,
when [ Is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to seitle the obligation or a present
obligation ariging from past evenls, when no reliable estimate s possible. Contingent assels are
disclosed in the financial stalements where an inflow of economic benefits are probable.

@: +91-7303504555 B4: gel@gawar.in




GAWAR KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd. Office: DSS-378, SECTOR 16-17, HISAR, HARYANA - 125001
(CIN :- U45309HR2018PTC073651) ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

2N Financlal Instrumants

Financlal essels and financlal labiiitles are recognised when the Company becomes a party b the
contractual provisions of he Instruments. Financlal assets and financial llabilities are Initially measured
al fair vaiue. Transaction costs that are directly attributabls 1o the acquisition or issue of financlal assels
and financial liablities {other than financlal assets and financlal liabilifies at fair value through Statemant
of profit and loss are added 1o or deducted from the falr value of the financial assets ar financial llabilitles,
as appropriate, onh Inftial recognition, Transaction costs directly attributable to the acguisition of financial
assets or financlal llabilities at falr value through Statement of profit and loss are recognised immedialely
In Statement of profit and lnss

a) Financlal Assets

All racognised financial assets are subsequently measured In thelr entirety at either amartised cost or
fair valus, depending on the classification of the financial assets

Investments in debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subseguently measured at
amortised cost (unless the same are designated &s fair value through profit or loss (FVTFL)):

* The ssset s held within a business model whose objective is o hold ssseis in order o collect
contractual cash flows; and

+ The contractual terms of instrument give rise on specified dates lo cash flows that are solely paymenis
of principal and inierest on the principal amount outstanding.

Dabt instrumants that mesat the following conditions are subseguently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive incoma (unless the same are dasignated as fair value through profit or Inss)

* The assel i& held within a buslness model whose pbjective I8 achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financlal assats, and

* The contractual terms of instrument glve rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and Intersst on the princlpal amount outstanding.

Dabt instruments at FVTPL Is a residual category for debt instruments and &l changes are recognised
in proft or loss.

Imvestments in equity instruments are classified as FYTPL, unless the Company mevocably elects on
inltial recognition o present subseguent changes In far value In OCI for equity instruments which are
not held for trading: .

Interest income, dvidend income and exchange difference (on dabt Instrumenl) on FVTOCI debt
instrumenis |8 recognised in profit or joss and other changes In fair valua @e recognised n OCI and
sccumulated In other eguity. On disposal of debt Instruments FVTOG! the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in other equity is reclassified b profit & loss. However, in case of equity
instruments at FVTOCI cumulative gain or Ioss s not reclassified to profit & loss on disposal of
Investmants.

by Financial Liabilities

Financia liabilities are classified at initlal recognition, as financial llabilities as fair value through profit
or |oss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derlvatives dasignated as hedging instruments n an
effective hedge, as appropriate. All financlal liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and bomowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowings are subsequently messured at amortised costs using Effective Interest Rate
mathod

Financlal liabllitles at fair value through profit or logs (FVTPL) are subsequently measured at falr value,
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Financial guarantss contracts are subsequently measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determinad as per impairment requirements of ind AS 108 and the amount recognised l2ss oumulative
amortisation.

Financial lisbility i derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancefled ar
axpires.

¢) Impairment of financial assets (Expected Credit Loss Modal)

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial
assels measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables,
ather contrectual rights to recelve cash or other financial asset and financial guarentees not designated
atFVTFL

Expected credil losses are the weighted average of credl losses with the respeclive risks of defaull
pccurring 2s the weights. Credit loss i the difference betwesn sll contraciug! cash flows that are due
o the Company in accordance with the contract/agreement and all the cash flows that the Company
expecis lo receive ([.e all cash shortfalls), discounted at the orginal effecfive interest rate. The
Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument, through
the expected life of the financial instrument.

Tha Company massures the Ioss allowance for a financial Instrument al an amount equal o the life-
time expected cradit losses I the credil risk on that financial instrument has nerease significantly since
Initial recognition. If the credit risk has not Increased significantly, the Company measures the loss
gllowance al an amount equal io 12-month expectad credit losses 12-month expected cradit losses
are portlon of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the life-time cash shortfalls that will
result If the defaull oocours within 12 months affer the reporling date and thus, are not cash shortfalls
that are predicted over the naxt 12 months.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since [nitial
recognition. tha Company usas tha change In the risk of a default occuming over the expected kfe of
the financial instrument instead of a change in the amount of the expected credit loss. To achieve thal,
the Company compares the risk of a default occuming on the finenclal instrument a3 at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information, that Is available without undue cost or effort, that Is Indicative of significant Increases In
credit risk since initial recognition,

212  Insurance claims

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims asdmitted / expecied to be admitted and to
the extent that the amount recoverable can be measured relizbly and It s reasonable b expest ultimate
collectlon

213 Claims

Claims sgainst the Company not acknowledged as debts are disclosed under contingent lisbilitles.
Claims made by the company are recognised as and when the same is approved by the respective
autharities with whom the claim s lodged.
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214 Commitments

Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure. Commitments are classified and
disciosed as follows:

)] Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and nol provided
for

{y Lincalled liabflity on shares and other investments partly pald

{lify Funding refated commitment to subsidiary, associale and joint venture companies and

iv) Other non-canceliable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and
relevant in the opinion of management.

Other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal course of business are not
disclosed to avoid excessive detalls,
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Racognised in profit & icss {24y . 1ITRER
| Recemised In offer camg ehensive Ingome = . -
balancs 78263 dod 158003
oTL OTA, oTL
118z 52
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GAWAR KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd. Office: DSS-378, SECTOR 16-17, HISAR, HARYANA- 125001

(CIN :- U45309HR2018PTC073651)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

Nolea to Financlal Statements as at and for the year ended on 31st March, 2024
[l figuren o statod in Re. Lakhs, unisss sthersise slaied)

1§ Bomowings : Current.

| Eirrent mally of lorg Wnm Gorowing 1,800 02 1,837 4 1715.01
|Loss: Linssnonisad ranassiion ool
Tokal
1€ Trade payables*
“Total outsiandina darn o ecs 4 sioal Enfaccriaes 2
| Tiata] putatandnn duse of crsditoos ofvr then misre. a4 small sotecarisss
nbies o misted party
Consinacson Limies 3888
Payobles W ofhars
Dibar - (i)
Tols 3894
"Fialal Now Ne 32 fer Aguing and Hote o 44 lor MSWIE diSstums
A7 Difr Brancisl lskilites 1 Curant
it e ik g
(Ditar Payabins . aa3g
finlmrwst Poymbia o Unsacuyed Lasn -] .
To Qher.
iniarwst paywhia on NOD 1TE2Y 158,08 18877
Auc] tea pApabia 787 270 270
|Eminy Pr:abin . s 02
Tatsl 18173 168,78 74,08 |
18 Dthwer gwrmeml Habiites
Tt 391 March, | A uf S4ak Warch, | -
— o Tk, Ve e | oo,
duss
TOE payntin 2088 #8733 EXE
Dthr duss
iE ba payabin T 570 -
Labcwr cusa paabis 108 - 381
— an e L)
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GAWAR KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd. Office: D55-378, SECTOR 16-17, HISAR, HARYANA-125001
(CIN :- U45309HR2018PTCO73651) ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended on 31st March, 2024
{all figures are stated In Rs. Lakhs, uniess ptherwiss statad)

Frrtdculam
and OBN] income
Ggin
Tokal
Partlculars
recaived on fixed deposite (nat)

interset neome on Loan and Advances
inferag! received on incame Tt Rafund

Tota

2 Coniract cost
Partioutsrs

Construction and O2M cost:

EPC expanses - 3380
Cperaficn & maintenance Fame 20028
Project imanagaimisnt s 183,81 17515
Other Construgtion and O&M Cost

lrmurance charges 43580 o247
Miae, recovary by depanment 0.47 ke

Accounis recelvabia wiitten off 485.08




GAWAR KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd. Office: DSS-378, SECTOR 16-17, HISAR, HARYANA - 125001
(CIN :- U45309HR2018PTCO73651) ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended on 31st March, 2024
{all figures are stated In RS, Lakhs, unlzss otherwise stated)

25 Tax oxponss
{n} Tax expenss recognised in the Statement of profit and loss
ent tax
Difarred tax [217.41) 1270.80
Bapenss recognised In ihe statement of profil and Joss | T46.83 2,261.78
{) The Tax sxpenss for the year can be reconclled to the accounting profit s followa:
Particulars ) .
bofore lax 2591142
- Efect of Restatemant - (5,233,867
befors tax and sifect of Restatemen 2811.43 3.605.02
T (@ 25 188% 73275 BET.ET
Tax effect of:
Incoma ms per the provisions of ICDS 10 & IV 148626 1,450 43
income mol b be conaldered a8 per the Income tax nles {1,270.84) (1,412 81}
Tax on expsnaes noi deductibie n detenmining fsxable profit 14.08 .87
I Tax on expanses deductibée in detemmining laxeble profit - {0.10)
{Currant Tax Provisions [(A) B54.34 BT3.00
Incremenial Dafemad tax Lishilty/|As=el) on gocount of Receivable under aarvice
concession amangement (217.41) 1278.88
Incremuntsl Defemed tax Linbilitg/{ A==t on accomt of Unclalmed preiiminery expenditure - 041
Defarred Tax Provisions (2) (217.41) 1,276.80
Tax oxpenen racognined In the statement of profit and koss T46.83 2,2563.78

@: +81-7303504555 B4: gci@gawar.in



GAWAR KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd. Office: DSS-378, SECTOR 16-17, HISAR, HARYANA - 125001
(CIN :- U45309HR2018PTCD73651) ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

MNotes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended on 31st March, 2024
{all figuras are stated in Re Lakhs, uniess otharwine stated)

3 Disciogure pursaant o Appandix -D to Ind AS 115-" Revenua from Contract with Costomer”

{li Description and classification of the arrangemant
The Company has enlerad |nfo Service Concession Agreamant ['SCA') with Matlonai Highway Autharity of India (NHAI daled 28t
Saplember 2018 for the purpose of Upgradation of 2 lane with paved shoulderf4 fane of khajuwala - poogal sectipn [Design Chaingge
0+000 o 30+812) and Poogal - Dantour - Jaggaser - Gokul - Goddu - Ranjaslpurs - Charanwaia - Naukh - Bap section of NH-811
[Design Chasinage 1+430 1o 182 +725) (Total Length 2122107 Km) under Bharatmals Parlyojna In he state of Rajasthan on Hybrid
Annuity Mode under concession agreement. NHAI grents o the Compeny exciusive right, Beanse and suthority o construct, operate and
maintain the project during the Construction Perlod of T30 (Seven Hundred and Thity) days and Operation Parlod of 16 (Fiflean) yesrs
commenging from COO.

{1} Significant Terms of the Amangemenis

|a} Bld Project Cost:- E
The cos! of the constraction of the project which s due and payable by NHAI Bs pn the Bid daie k& considered &s tho bid project cost
under tha concassion agresment. Bid project cost & incluslve of the cosl of construction, interest during constructian, working capital,
physical contingencles and all other cosls, expenses end charges for and in respect of the construction of tha projact.

b} Paymont of Bld Project Cost:-
4% of tha Bid Project Cosl, adjusted for the Price Index Multiple, shall be dus end payable fo Ihe company in § equal instaiments of &%
each durng the Construction Period n accordance with the provisions of Clause 23.4 of the SCA.

The ramaining Bid Projpct Cost, adjusted for the Price Index Mulllple, shall ba dus and peysble n 30{lHirty) biannual astalments
gommencing from the 180th day of COD i eccardance with the provigion of Clause 238 of the SCA

Infaras! shall be due end payahla on tha reducing balance of Complelion Cost & an inferss! rate equal o the applicable Bank Rate plis
3%. Such Inferes! shall be due and payable biannualty along with each Instaiment specified in Clause 2364 of SCA.

(o} Bonus on early complotion:-
The SCA also provides for the payment of Bonus o the company in the event the COD & schieveéd on or more than 30 days prior o the
schedule completion date. Tha company has acheved PCOD on 20012021

(d) Opsration & Mainlenance Paymanta;-

Al Operation and Maintensnce expenditure shell be boma by the concésalonsira, However, &6 provided in SCA, the company shall ba
enfitled to received lump sum financial suppor in the form of biannusl payments by the MHAL which shall be computed on the amount
guoled n the OEM bld Each mstaimenl ol OEM paymenl shall be the product of the amouril determined in accordanca with claugs
2371 of the SCA and the price index muitiple on the referenca index date praceding the due date of peyment thereot

(g} Escrow Account:-
In terms of the SCA, the company shal enter Info an Escrow Agreament, substantially i the form sef forth In schedule '0° of tha SCA,
with MHAI, Escrow bank and senlor lenders and shall establish Escrow Account with the Escrow bank, The company alse reguire ko
daposil and mada withdrawals & deschbed in the Escrow Agreamenl. Accordingly, the company has enlersd |na an Escrow Agraémant
with the Indusind Bank and NHAL

fl Termination of the SCA:-
SCA can be terminalad on Bccount of dafaull of the company of NHAI In the cifoumatances as spacified undar articie 31 of tho SCA

ig) Restriction on assignment and charges:-
In Yerms of the SCA tha company shafl nol assign, frangfer or dispose of all or ahy rights and banefilz under SCA or creste any
encumbrances thereto except with prior consant of NHAL

(k] Changos In SCA;-
Thare i no change In tha S5A during the yesr

@: +91-7303504555 B4: pri@gawar.in



GAWAR KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd. Office: DSS-378, SECTOR 16-17, HISAR, HARYANA - 125001
(CIN - U45309HR2018PTC073651) ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended on 31st March, 2024
{all figuras are stated In Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise atated)

Zr [Disciosure of financial instrumants by category
Parficular ‘Note no. BT - e -
Aspayis =
Ofher non currant financisl assets 3 - - 2247001
Trade recalsablas [ - - TB4 B8R
Cash and cash equivalents B - ] 3,592.18
Hani balances othor than cash and cach equivaianis above ] E - 248382
Oilber curront fnancial assats 7 - - 8,154 12
Total Financial 15805 - . "

[Financlal labiity

Bomowings inchuding cumant maturity 12815 - - 14,2680.14
Trede payables 18 . T =
Ot financial fabiities © Currant 1w ” - 18173
5 . a 0 X077 |
Particutar Nota no. .

(Financlal esmate
Cither non cuwment financial asssts 3 - 23,184,238
Trade recalvablas 4 - T50.78
Cazh and cash squiveients 8 = i 353,40
Bank balances other than caah and cash equivaients ahove B - - 3544 84
Ofher current firancial sssets 7 - - B,280.51
= : : 5876361

| Financlal lrability
Bomowings inchading curant malurity 12815 - - 09TT.AT
Trade payables 18 ] . 38,84
Diher financial kabillas : Current i7 - - 158.78
= . 2 178,10

2 Fair valug of inanciol seset and Dablitios

The follewing sbie provides the jalr value maasurament higrarchy of Company's asset and Febiffies grouped into Leval 1o Leval 3 a= describad
e

Level-1; Quoted prices for [dentical sseats / Iabifies in active markets. | includes falr value of financisl nstruments aded i aciive markols and s
based an quoled makel prices o the bolance shest dede (e Motusl funds. unlie)

Lowol2: inputs that any obscrvablo for the assel linbiity {other then level 1 inpute), cither drectly (ihat |5, o prices) or indirectly (hat i, desived from
prices). § nclades f8 value of 1 financial nelnumenis that aré nol tréded n an aclive mancst, b determined by using vahialion techriques, if &
mignicant inputs reguired io fisr vnlue an inetrument are obsensable then instriment is included in leval 1

Loyl 3: Significant Inpuls for Uhe assel or fabiSly fhetrument) fat e not based on obacrvablo markel data, & nchuded h lovel 3

P AR
Particutar Mot o, -
L | Carrying smoini_ Lavel_
amsats
Ciitver non currond fnancial assets 3 22478 2247001 Loval 3
Trade recaivables 4 TE4 65 T84.56 Lavel 3
Cash and cash eguivalianis 5 300318 390318 Level 3
Bank batances oiher fhan cash and cash eguivalents above g :m 2.:::\:2 Lﬂﬂl:
= aanats FThEA.TT gmﬁl’
IFinaneial Habifty _
Barrowings including curren! maturity 12 a8 18,788.34 18,387 48 Level 3
Trade payables 16 - - Lol 3
Othar finoncial lebilitles : Curront 17 18173 181.73 Laovel 3
inancial lighilittes 18487.57 1856823
As at :
[Financial esssta
Cither nen cument financial aesets ] 23,184,235 £3,184,23 Lovel 3
Trade receivables a2 T8 T80.76 Lovel 3
Cash and cash equivitients -] 363.40 |40 Levsl 3
Bank balamces oihor than cesh and cesh equivalanis obove B 358484 354481 Level 3
Othar current financial Bgsels T 8280 51 B 280,51 Loval 3
= Total Financial sssote 36 10854 30 903.51
[Financial labil Ty
Bormowings incledng cument maiity 1ZE15 20977 AT 21,100.00 Lovel 3
Trezle paysblos 18 3884 35 Laval 3
Oiher financial ehilfes : Gurment 17 168.78 158,78 Laval 3
Fokail lizhlihes [ SAa0F.02 |

The carmying amount of frade recelvabie, Cash and cesh equivetents, Bark balances, financisl sssets, trode paynbie & other Firanclal fa
sy i of amvoriised cost &e concldered o be the same a5 their (ak values.




GAWAR KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd. Office; DS5-378, SECTOR 16-17, HISAR, HARYANA-125001
(CIN :- U45309HR2018PTC073651)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

Motes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended on 31st March, 2024

[all figures ars stated in Aa Lakhe, unless otherwise statad)

¥ Reconclligtlon betwasn the opaniig and closing balances i the fMnancial slaterent for labilities affslng fFom Ananclal actvitles (lnd A8 7) for

the: year 2023-24
30000 20gTT A7 EEoE
(1.837.67)
151.00
(26.00)
(1442 43)
148628
2118 (2118
5300.00 1916114 TIE.60
t’lﬂm.ﬁn Equity shire capRal | Secured borrowing” | Uneecured m "'m'_-"fn“- “:"'_
Opaning balence 01, 5 300.00 22HT1.28 1,165 08 2
Cash fiows
Rapaymant of sacuréd borowing {1,715 00)
Procesds from unsecured bomowing §13.00
Ropayment of unsecurad bomewing [1,718.05)
Imeres! & olher fmance charges paid (187777}
Mon cash adjustmants
Irtenest & other finance charges acorued 147208
Transaction cost edjusirmant 21.18 121,18
Closlng balance 31,00.2021 530000 . - 155 18

“Wel of Unamaonised ransacion cosl

(3:+91-7303504555
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GAWAR KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd. Office: D55-378, SECTOR 16-17, HISAR, HARYANA-125001
(CIN :- U45309HR2018PTCO73651) ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

Notes to Financlal Statements as at and for the year ended on 31st March, 2024
(! figures are stated n Re, Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

M Financlal Risk Management
The company's actvilies expose I to varlety of financial risxe ; maket risk, eredt rsk and Iguidity rsk. The oo
ungesdictabilily of francial marksts and seek o minlmie polenlin adversd affecls an B8 Arentidl pafommence The
respansdllity for the establlshment and oversight of the Company's risk maragemant fremeworii Tha Bosrd risk
menagement policy b (dantify and anaiyss the reks faced by the Company, © sel mppropeste rsk imite snd conffols. snd to monitor risks snd
adherence i imis Risk managamant systems sre reviewed perdodically io refiect changes n merkel condibons and the Company's acthaties, The
Board of Dyectors oversea compliance with the Company's riek mansgement policies and procedured, end reviews the ek menagement framawork.

§g
|

A} Mnricet risk
The market risk s the ek thaf the far valus or fdue cash Aowes of & financial Westrument wil luctuste because of changes m market prices, Markel nak
compriss3 three types of risk: curancy FEK, niemast e ek 2nd ether prics sk

| Forelgn Currency Riak
Foreign currency risk s i sk that Tek vake or fulure cagh Nows of & Fnancial neiriment will Mucluste becsuse of changes In fofeign exchange raie
Tha compeny & not exposed o forelgt cumency sk =s i hes ro borrowing or no peyebles in foreign curtancy

I interest raba risk
intmres! Ak risk & the rsk hat fair vale or future cash flows of a financial mnetrement will uctuaie becouse of chenges N Market interes! rates.
The iniadest risk arises o e company mainly nom Long term borrowings with verisble rates. The company measures risk through sensdivity analysis

Cumantly, Lending by Non-Corvertible Debenfure & =i Frad rale only, so nol any interast sk praseni,

il Priee rimk
Price nsk & the risk fhat ihe fak valse or fulure cash Fows of a financial metrument wil Rickuals because of changes in marksl prices (othar than hose
miising from interest rate risk or cumency. risk)

The company is ol exposed o price nsk s & has not financlal irstrumend that Mucluate becacse of changes I Market prices (eg Investmant in mutual
fund)

Bl Liguidity risk
Liguildity rlak is the disk that an eniity wil ancounter dificuly i meeling chiigations sssocialed wih nanclal isbistes fhal are setfied by dellvering cash or
arother finencel essats.
Tha company mBasures ek by forecasling casn fows.
The Company's approach fo managing lguidty # o enbure, a8 faf 8 possible, hal # will slways have sofficient iquidity fo mast s fsbdias whan dus
without incumring wnaccepieble ossss o riskng damage fo the Company's mputation The Company ensures thal # has sufficlent fund o mes expected
aparalional expanses, servicing of fnancial obigations.

Tha following are the coatractusl maturties of franclal llabliities

| As mt 318t March, 2024 Gafylng Amosnt | cdtofpear | 1. Zysams 2-Byears >5 vgam
{Non gerivative financiz| liabillty ! i
moWngs including current maturity 18,268 14 186002 1,980.02 BA45Z 48 857362
rade payabics z =581 . 2 :
thar financial abeties | Current 16173 18173 | . = .
Dwrieathve Anancial Nabllisy Nl L | NIL HiL NIL
As at Mist March, 2023 Carrying Amount unto 1 yuer 1-2./ wdre 2.5 v sars 36 vasr
Non durivativo Anancial bty
Bomowssgs inthidling cumenl maturty 2087747 1,887 51 | 1860,02 B,247.51 10,232 43
Trade payulees 304 | 3mBd | 1 - -
Ciher financa: fiabiltes : Gumrent 180.75 158.78 | ol | - -
Darhvative fnanclal lability NIL NIL | N | HIL HIL

€} Cradt risk

Credi risk & the riak et & counferparty will not meel s obigatons under & fnancisl inatrument or customar contract, |eading o a financial loss. Tha
Company hag adopledl poicy of anly deaing credbvordhy courlerparties. The Management befeves thal e cedl sk = negligible since (ts maln
racaivalie i fom the gmniors of concesslon which & Govermmant Autharity (NHAS

(D:.+91-7303504555
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GAWAR KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd. Office: DS5-378, SECTOR 16-17, HISAR, HARYANA - 125001
(CIN :- U45309HR2018PTC073651) ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

Mates fo Financial Statements as at and for lm'yur endad on 31st March, 2024
(il Agures are statsd In Be. Lakne, urises pifhscwise stated)

1 Ageing of Gurrent Trede Recalvabies
For comand trads meslvables sulstanding As o March 31 2024

_Benadua of Traos P ] ma @t Moy

Sehadul of Trech Purysbis for Balaccs es & March 31
Fartktulers Leaa a1 peer 2 years 23 yeurs = [ Tt

:
i
|
:
|
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GAWAR KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd. Office: DSS-378, SECTOR 16-17, HISAR, HARYANA-125001
(CIN :- U45309HR2018PTCO73651) ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

Motes to Financial Statements as at and for the year endad on 31st March, 2024
&l figures mre 3ated in Ao LEkha, uniass oihansios glated)

o Asstaismant of Financial Stebemenis
331 Durlig o gurent yarr e Company f@s Rostnled Be Froncia Siatemants of provious yeamn n compilence wilh nd AE B Tho rosisternent conaiders ihe belkoe
changom
1 Gomplence wih ina A5 108 I gve siact of Modficslion Gainlloss By kesping Orignael Efeclve niaras! rain g5 constant year on yesr Dass
2 Effect of changes in safrmaime dus o sppicabiity of GST on Arnullies srd Chenge of GST rafe on congiruction ssnece from O o 124 0 9%
3 Qi mnor changas 0 esSmates @ gve lek grasaniation

A8 it 1mt March, 3023

Balance as por - -
Impached Haa inpact in Groupiog  [Mapories Sumos | Nt mpact | Rasued Balamcs
i s

il i st Warvice ToNCARMlon srangammnt:  JoT "i: Cumsnl | o anice Shast Fr RN ] ITLE0 24,5432

Aocelvabls untar BEFyicd CONERARIRA AFTAAgAMEnt ul?ﬁll:lﬂllﬂ Batamce Bhant 2790856 548168 8280081

Tan Lishility jnai) #1783 1,443.00 1,880,03

Dafsrec Tax Liabilly “ln"nulllul-.:l Balance Shant 53703 1,843,600 1,850 03

Doatarrnd to sesaly - . -
 and Losa Effects

Cnains=lan ieama "'D:‘r:::’ Profit & Lomn 72302 58193 130499

EIR Toame ":"""I':" Frofl & Loss & B AR {1,108.87) srEr

Mosifizaten Gen "“u""“n:';" Profit & Loss : 570041 5780 41

Dafared Tax Ermome Tax Expsnuman Frofil B Loas AT 41 1|7 2 137880

it st Ao, 202
“Halahoe as par i i
Impactad Haed Impect i Grauping Raported Balance Mat impact Rastated Bulance
-]

l:minu- undar asrvics conceanlan armngment 1':"’“"" N e | Ealance Shast 2474998 {4,308 4 an3n2 3z

|Rucmivable andar s4rvicd concession arrsngomant rum':“’_""‘ Balanes Shoat 2.380.33 4,898.83 7,252.80

Dotarad Tax Lisbésty {nst) 874,44 128.79 70023

Dwtared Tax Lishiiby "’l'“ﬂ' “’"I:::' Balance Shoot 57458 12679 7004

Daterrnd jax assals [LRiT) + {.11)
Proit and Losa Effgets

Rennrey A0 Hrirpius Othar Exulty Rsinnce Shaot 1 60408 17400 d37H 48

Tinouges Cumuislive Impac of BRines upm Mash 2020
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Regd. Office: DS5-378, SECTOR 16-17, HISAR, HARYANA - 125001
(CIN :- U45309HR2018PTC073651) ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

Noiss to Financial Statements as ot and for the year snded on 318t March, 2024
{all Nguros me stated in Ra. L, Unioss otfisrwiss staisd)

312 Dotads of Effoct of Rostatoment n Balance Shost

e g = o

1N, Kon-cumen) Exssis
{a} Prapurly, plant and squipmant - . - - -
B} Invessment Propsry - . - - -
(i) Financial ameais = Z
|I} mvasiEAl 2 = 3 z ¢
[ll} Trada Feceivables - - - e - .
{ik} Qihar fnsnclat sxmss 22 312 43 27180 22184,25 27 TTR 2 {4,388 8 23,471 38
(d) Bt hion Currend sasats - . - . . .
TOTAL NOK CURRENT ABSETS i Tim FAIEATS T TTRaE T —ﬂ'i'iTﬁ"_ !
{2 Currant swsaty
(&) Invenicrian - - - -
B Finenciul uzsels
Il bveslmanis . - . - i :
{1} Trada Resalvabks 78078 . 72078 5§70 . 5817
() Cash mnd cush oquivelonis 8340 - 383.40 3380 - 60
(¥} Bank Baimnow otfer then |) above 3544m - 3,344.51 .08 - 00
(v} Dthir financind msats 2,788 65 540188 A,760 51 238633 4 pea RS 135288
{€] Currend (o sssets |Mal) 20010 - 20310 81078 - B15.78
{if Othar Gunrent gasels 1620.81 - 1 B2LE1 arins . 2738.43
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1k lﬁﬁr-—_ﬂ%ﬁ"-—]hﬂ LLENE ﬂ;ﬂ‘ﬁ"
[TOTAL ABSETS ’E‘!ﬂ'.?l (Y2 ¥ ATHTAE | SaiBaak Aa. T P TTEREN
&I. ECHATY AND LIABILITES
1. ECHATY
18| Equity shirs capitsl £.30000 - £,300.00 5,300.00 - £,300.00
(a1} Clibar pquty Sg10ES 4 2B0.46 B 30131 3 EM.48 T4 4.770.48
TOTAL EQUTY 15310.88 dn 4RI WI04_6 37400 BSTHAL
2. LIABILITIES
\Wan current Babilftes
{m} Financiat [iskiises
I} Baerowingas 10,180,123 i 19,180 13 2208282 22 R 83
{11} Trmcin payniian
{#) Total cutslanding duss of micrs : . 2 5
ant smal| arepisas; s i
1B) Tets! oulsiarding duss of credlors
aner than mioro end smal enlepiss
and
] Dtha financial fatiities " 4 s #1419 . T
B Prosisicnis = " : 5 - .
[} Dafarradd b Jabildiae (e s37.03 144300 1,880,053 Bra84 125.79 o2
18] Cnnr non-curren Fatdizas | et [ e STl 5 o | .
TOTAL HON GURRENT LIABILITIES k[ 1ITAL) RIZENT] 21 1808 “FIATAE 1587 FERCEN
Current Tladllides
{m) Finmncial fabiltiea
(i) Bemowings 181724 - 1,817.34 168201 169381
{7l Trace paysbies
(4] Tetal culslanding duss of micro
wrid smel enlerprises. anc d =
[B] Tolsl ouistanding duss of crodices
ciher than micra end amal enlemgrnisss; 1. 1:0 3494
&
i} Dthar francal lizbiilas 18878 - 1887 174.86 - 17488
[l Provisiane - - - - - -
5] Ciher cuenant babiites 7089 . 7088 J?Ei - ar
TOTAL CURRENT LIABLITIES 18808 . 2,188,08 1e0e 7 5 *E%

™

g

) (PP -

’ . .ﬂ.‘ﬂ. o
) R
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Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended on 31st March, 2024
(all figures ara stated in Re. Lakhs, uniess otharwiae stated)

33.3 Details of Effect of Hestatement In Statement of Profit and Losa Account

Particulars
| incoma
Revanua from operations 5613.M 523387 10,847.58
Othar income : 225.51 - 22551
Total Income {|) 5,830.47 533367 11,073.08
|I. Expansas
Contract cosl E20.78 - G20.78
Employes Banefit Expensas 544 - 544
Finance cost 1472.08 - 14T2.08
Depraciation And Amaortization Expenses - = -
Other sxpenses 65.20 - 55.20
Total expenses (ll) 2,153.50 - 2,153,560
i, Profit [ (Loss) befars Tax (| - M) 368682 B5,433.67 B.818.59
i, Exceptional items - - .
V. Profit before tax I_'IIH"I’} 368582 s:gau.ir I,Iﬁ,!l
VI Tax oxpenss
(1) Currant tax grige - 87356
(2) Defarred tax 137.41) 1317.21 | 1,279,80 |
Total Tax Expensa [VI) ! D3B.E5 1,317.21 228378
VIl ProfitiLoss) for the period after tax (V-V]) 2748.37 3,016.46 6.665.83
Wil Other Comprehansive income
|Remegsurements of the defined banafil plans - : -
Total other comprehensive Incame (VIII) - - -
IX Total comprehensive income for the oeriod! VIV == 2749.37 3,918.46 65,8658

(D: +91-7303504555 B4: gel@gawarin
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Regd. Office: DS5-378, SECTOR 16-17, HISAR, HARY ANA - 125001
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Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended on 31st March, 2024
(mll Migures are stated i Ra. Lakbs, unises otherwine atatoed)

M Ratio Analyals

S T L T R S S T T8 LTI S|
M Currant Rafis:

Currant Asswin (a)

Trade recalvablas 764 68 75078

Cagh and cash equivalenis 3849016 3540

Henk balsncss o than casf end cash equivalenis sbove 246582 1 544 B

Oiher financial ssssta B154.12 B, 28051

Currant Tax Assets (Nat) 160 53 20310

Oelher curment ssssls a7 1564718 152081 14743.30
Current Liabilties b}

Currant Berowimgs 184182 181734

Trade Payable - 3894

Crttyver finaincinl latiines |12 15878

Ot curmant lisbifles T 2163.33 170.88 1186.08
Current Ratic (2] Taa:1 BTa T

a Verancs | 7 12%
b Reanon for Changes mom than 25%; MNA

§] Debt Sarvice coverags Retlo ;

hiert. Predity (Loes) ARer Tmoes (a) 2,164 .60 6655483
Intmrast Expense and Amorisation Expanses b} 1,350 80 1.4BT 40
Earings avalable for Detl Sorvicns fﬂﬁ*h] 3 §18.40 113323
Total Datit rapald (2 TEETEY o - 7
Interes! Lizbilty repaid (=) 1,306.84 1.873.09
Tolel Oebl Including inferest f= des) | 3170.38 E356.14
Debi Sarvics Coveraga Ratia (e 1.7 Timss 1.63 Timas

2 Varlance © 27.45%
b Romscn for Chengss moss than 25%: Detrmass i repayment
of Dedrl and Decreass in profil @5 compsred 1o previous year.

M) Asturn on Equity Ratlo:

hed Prefli after Taxes [a) 2,104.80 6,085 83
Auerage Equity Shareholoer's Fund () 15,683,681 12 D% 80
Riturn an Equity Ratis (%) [aib) 12.00% £5,94%

a Varancs : 74 87%
b Roason for Changes mome than 25%: Decmese in Mel prof
afier Tax for panod comparsd bo previous year,

] invantory Tumover Ratio: MA

vl Trage Recelvables turmover Relio:

bl Grodd Sales (a) 5,00 44 10,847 58
Avarage Trade Receivable (k) I 185171 87123
Trade Recelvabia Tunover Aallon (af] E.BE Timen 1816 Timea

& \Varfance : S8.79%
& Raason for Ghanpss mors (nen 26%: Decresse h rel oredit
salEs §s COMpET® i0 [ evious yaar

@: +91-7303504555 B4: gel@gawar.in
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(CIN :- U45309HR2018PTCO73651) ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended on 31st March, 2024
(sl Migures are stated in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

i) Trace Payabies twumover Ratio:
Nel Tred? Purchess () 107445 B20.T8
Averags Trade Paysbie (b} 19.47 1047
Truds Payabls Turmaver Ration [sib) 5519 3188

B Varanoa ; 73.12%
b Resson for Changes mome fhan 25%: Increase in ket Ciedd
purchases/sarvicas as companed io gravious ysar.

wll) Nt Capital tumover Ratio :

Balee {a) 504044 10,847.58
Wirking capilei {Curment Assats - Cument Linkd) fins) (3] 3353 84 12 E57.24
Hal Caplta turnover Ratio {af) o2 LLL

u Varance : 55818
b Reason lor Charges mose fan 25%. Decrease 1 sales and
Increass i working capilal &8 compans 1o pravious year

will] Nat Profit Ratio:

Prodn wher Tax () 2,154 50 BBEEA]
Saloa b} 5 0u8 44 LT
Nat Praft Ratls (%) (o) ALETH B1.46%

2 Varianos | 30.24%
b Resgon far Changes mane than 26%;: Oncranss in Sales and
dnerease n proflt s compam D previous yeen

|x) Rstum an Capital Employed :
Profidf (Loss) betors Tes fa) 2@11.483 8,818,508
Intares Expense (b) 135080 1467 40
Esmings bafore Intarest and Taxas {c] {e+b) 4283223 10 3848.99
Tetal Assets (d) o argarse
Lees @ Tolsl Liabllbes | 8 (21,260 28) (23.338.21)
Lesa | Infangible Assats ) 3 =
Tangitie Mat Warth (g = d-a-f) VB TEE ST L k- L
Doferred Tax Linbdity (b 176283 1,660.03
Torbat Dt {) 10,205 14 20877 47
Capital Employed (3 (geh+] . — arpraer | 7 88881
Retum on Capltal Employed (%) (<) 1L2T% 1T 6%

a Varance : SE26%
b Resson kv Changes mone (han 25%:; Dacresds n profl os
Cormpane o pravious pamr

x] Duhit . Bquity Ratin

Tatal Datit (] 18,288 14 20,8TT.4T
Share Caphal 6,300.00 530000
Ressrve and Byrplus 11, 458.81 #3013
Sharahoider's Equity (o) | 18T 8B.81 _l4EdLa
Dabt - Equity Ratio |Tiemes) (o) 118 Thas 144 Timaa

& Wariance ; 20 Wis
b Regson for Changes mors (han 259 NA

xli Raturn On Investments 1 HA

@: +91-7303504555 B4: gel@gawar.in
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Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the yvear ended on 31st March, 2024
{all Nigures are stated In Ra. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

35 Capiial Manapement
For the purpose of the Company's capital mansgement, capital includes issusd equity capétnl and & ofher equity reserves atiributsbls D the equity
holders. The primary objeciive of the Companry's capits! menagemant & o madmize the shareholder value, The Company manages its caphal
siructune and mtkas adumimants in (ght of changes i economic conditione snd the requirements of the frenclal covenante. To maintain or adjust
tha capitsl structure, e Compony meay adjust the dvidand payment io shareholdors, reirn capiial io sharsholders o lssue new shares. The
Company monitors capital uging & gaarning ratio, which & nef dobt divided by tofal equity and net deid,

Gearing Ratio

5 d_lu—lu—nu-w
Cash and Cash Equiveismts 3pg3ie 25340
bt (A L O L
18, 7a5.M 14 601.31
ety (B) 8, 78505 60T
Equity and Not debt (C=A-+H) 32,058,688 38,216.28
o (%! (VG 47.70% 60.54%

i) Risk managomaent
The Company™s objactines when menaging capial hmsuwmrmhmwamm o fhot they can condinue o provide
refuma for sharsholders and benstils for other slakeholdars, end mthmNMﬂmﬂimm

others In the industry, unummqmimmrﬂ-uhmﬂmm debi (ot bomowings net of cash and cash equivelents) divided by
EBITDA (Profif befors lax plis depreciafion and amortization expense plus finance costs) The Company's strategy & 1 onpwre Dl the Nel Debt b
EBITDA & managed of 2n opfimal lsval considering the above factons, Tie Nat Debt fo ESITDA ratios wers 83 follows:

As ot 315t March 4024 | : ]
EEITDA 426223 15,388 99
95 i

{e) Loan coverants

Undor the ferms o the major bormawing Feciitics, the Company |8 Fequins 10 comply with cartaln financlal coversnts and the Company hes complied
with {hose covenants thmughout the reporfing paricd,

hﬂm L ¥

srim Dividend

ot of dividend paid - 1,843.00
i per anukty shore - 30
Comgaany hat rol proposed oy ovidand durng FY es-24

Tha Company does ot have any irsnsachion 1o which the provision of Ind AS-2 relating o Valuston of ivantories appiies.
Digclosury pursasant to ind AS 116 "Revenuo from Contract with Customar”

Amun| Of contrae! revenul Fecognised in the perod 45425 Lakhs (PY, Ra. 1304.85 Lakhs)
Method med o recognise fhe conatructions revenue -Proportionate o work executed during the year on the bags of cosl plus. margin.

FeY B

¢ Disaggregats revenua Information
mmmhhdwunmmwmwmm
T : For tha your ondod on 3=t |
40002
=237




GAWAR KHAJUWALA BAP HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd. Office: DS5-378, SECTOR 16-17, HISAR, HARYANA - 125001
(CIN :- U45309HR2018PTC073651) ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended on 31st March, 2024
(ol figures are stated in R Lakhs, unless otherwiss statod)

38 Disclogure pursuant o Ind AS 19 "Empioyee bonefits"
Thero &8 no Post Employment Benefl comporents n e Salwies paid b the empioyess, 0o providing of Rotirement benofits in tha Torm o
Prevident Fund, Penslon Fund and Employess Stale ingurance Fund & not applicabis io the company dun fhe imit of employees spediied h e
fespeciig act
Henge, mo provision for employee benofils &6 pef Ind AS 10 has been created

3 Disclosure pursuant to ind AS 23 "Bomowing Costs™

T 14708 |
14885 50
40 Disciosurn of refated partles / related party transactions pursuant fo Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosuroa®

A List of relafed parties and rolationshp

WWW

% Designation

Mr. Rakesh Kurmsr Cirscior

M. Revindor Kumar Diraciar

Mr. Yogesh Mahajan Direcior ard Chief Exaculive OfMcar

Mok Vinoet Gosl Chief Finnncssl Officos

M= FPoop Mifts! Company Secrstagy

wﬁiﬁﬁm” Influgnce of the KME / Relpflve of the KNP of the Compary

A wiGlal Warch 2024 | Asaf SisiMarch 2023 |
530000 §,300,00
12500 -
aes -
- 3gaa
EPG, D&M Cost, PMF including price escalation (G5T exchided) 467.90 507.23
Procesds fom unsecured |oen 151,00 813.00
Repaymant of unsecured oan {28.00) {1.74.05)
Interest expanses on unsecied Laan 1.11 11685
Reimbursement of Expensen paid an our behall 004 oz
Gawar Foundation
CER Expandiue 2620 =
1.44 104

@: +91-7303504555 B4: gel@gawar.in
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Regd. Office: DSS-378, SECTOR 16-17, HISAR, HARYANA - 125001
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Notee to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended on 31et March, 2024
faill figures are stated In As. Lakhs, unisss otherwieo stotod)

41 Disclosurs pursuent o ind AS 33 "Eamings per share™

share [EFS| comauted In accordanca with ind A8 33 ehara”,

Amoimt in Lakhs 2154.00 5,855

In Mumbsrs §,30,00,000 5,30,00,000

In Numbara £,20,00,000 5,30,00,000

sightad avetage number of equily shares outstanding fior In Numbexrs §,30,00,000 §,30,00,000
cudating disting eamings per shars

Earnings per Share In Rupsss a0 12.54

mmewmg-wm n Rupess 4,08 12.58

nwmmﬁmym:mmuw’ﬂmmmaﬂnmmmﬂhmm by the numier of
equify sharss lenued during the yess muitplled by the tine weighling fackor. The dme weighling facix b the number of days for which the specific
shire are cututanding a8 & proportion of tokal number of days during he yesr! pericd.

ity Sinca, there are no potential dilitive Instrumentz, Diluted 275 & conaldered equal & the beslc EPG.

1)
iy Other Servicas (Ocinion | Cedification Feas) 080 270
“Tokal NG B
44 The amount dus b Moro & Small Enlerprisss 28 defined i (he "The Micro, Smal snd Madium Enterprizes Development Act, 2008° hag been

determined 1o the sxdent such pafss heve been iderdfied on the basis of mfommation

v, |
transactione. during the yesr wih Moo and Small Entorprises coverad Undor the Micro, Small snd Medium Entorprises Devaloprmont (MSMED) Act
2006,
45 Forelgn Curroncy Transactions Fﬂfﬂﬁmﬂwmu th-ﬁmm
(0 Expanciturg I Foraign Cumency Hil " .."
i CIF value of import AB ps
(i) FOB value of Expert ] Nl
() Eaminga i Fordign Exchange N Ml
Remittance In Forelgn Exchangs ] Nl

48 Disclosurs of sagmeont inforimation pursuant 1o ind AS 108 "Operating Segmonts”™
The Company is engaged in gingle bushoss segment of Upgradation of 2 lane with peved shouldand kino of khajuwalz - poogel section (Design
Chainsge 0+000 o 30+81%) snd Foogal - Dontour - Jaggasar - Gokul - Goddy - Renjeatpura - Chammyala - Naukh - Bap section of NH=-811 (Design
Chainage 14430 o 182 +725) (Told Lenglh 2122107 Km) undar Bharstmala Parfyojna n the sisle of Rejasthan on Hybrid Anmsiy Mods baals in
Engle business ssgment. Henca reporting of operaling sepmeonts does nof orise. The Company doas not heve operafions ouisde Inda
disclosre of geographical ssgment nformstion does nol arise.

iz

Rirvanue of tho Compamy derived from single custamas (NHAL which amounts & 10% or mare of the Compamy's revenus.
47 In 1he opinion of the Boand, the cusrent assets, lnane & advances, have @ vake on resization e ordingry colinse of businoss 3 Jeast equsl o the
amount &l which {hoy are stolsd In the Balance Shest.

L] Hwﬂaﬁnmdummmanm mesting the applicabifity thrashold, neods 1o spend af foast 2% of s svarags ret prof@
for the immedintely preceding three firancial years on GSR

Exnnditure on Corpo rate Soclal Responsibils, |CSR)
Fior Ol yoar snoed on JTeL | L ol
5276 9510
5196 S
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Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended on 31st March, 2024
(nll figures are stated in Re Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

._n.._q. -"!11 ch e

CSR Poicy of tha company & aimed to suppor o tha disadvantage/marginelzad cross seclion of the soclety by providing opporunities o improve
their quakty of Iife Aso embedded n i3 objective o demonsirats the cere for the community through s focus on education & skil development

health & welness, Animal Welfgre and environmental susisinatity
& Thers wera no |itigation pendng against tha compeny which cowd be materally impect &8 financial position as & the and of tha yaar

50 |mpalmant of Financial Asssts
The credi risk o the financial asssts has nol increased aince the ntial meeognition. therefore company messure the loas aliowancs for the nancsl
assets el an smound squal o 12 month expecied credll losses. Since e fnancial sssels am axpectsd o be reallsed within tha conlractual period of
e Invoice ralsed as such, thers W no ECL {expectsd credl pss) snvissged In tha vaiua of fnancial sssats under SCA [Service Concession
agreamant) by he marsgement.

61 Addithonal disclosure on Non Convartible debentures

() Company has mot been identified 28 & Lage Corporste {LC) in FY 202324 In lemms of SEB| clculer no. SEBVHQ/DDHE/DOHS-
RACPODUPICIR/2023/172 dated 18.10 2023 on the basis of cutslanding bomowings ss delaiiad befow:

Parfidilam ‘Rrmount - i
[Dulsndng Ouallied Bontwings Bl he skt of the fnancial c8ar la 1=t Apm 2023 41100.00 |
(uistanding lalNad Borrowings of the end ofia Friancial =ar (e, sl ll"'ﬂi,'!ﬁz-# 1 Ly
edl cred? taling of tha campany (whene fha credil faling relstes & the Uniupporied bank Bomowing or plain 1
anilig bands of an entiy, which have no stucturing suppert bislt in) I AMA|
Ermantal barrowing dona dunia tha vaar (Lualked Borowina| 1 NI

o A B Wy Of [BEUENCE of G0l sECLies Sunno the JeR0 | ﬁ‘

(i} FSIN of the Company fas been changed pursuant b revision n Coupon rabte from INEDVHGO7018 I INEDIRGOTO22

{li} Tha debt-to-equity rate hed been deleted with efect fom Nevember 30, 2023 vide Second Supplemantaf Deed 1o Debentivs Tnsl Desd daled
Novambar 30, 2023,
(¥} Coupon Rele hss bean Increased from &% p.a o 8% p e wih affect rom Cecember 31, 2023

52 Company has Debeniure RedampBon Fund of Rs.384.67 Lakhs in the form of Flxed Dapostt with schedued bank in cornplisnea of tha provsions of
Compaftes Agl, 2013
51 Other Statutory Information

fly DCetalls of benami property hald
No proceadings have been inilated an or are panding agains! the Company for holding banam| property under the Benami Transactions (Profibifion)

Acl. 1988 (45 of 1988) ard Rules made tharaundar.
Borrowing securad againel current essyte

The Company has lemm loan borrowings from banks on the basls of secunty B3 refemed ko in the Bomowing security clause which Includes cument
assetn. The requied parindic information has been complied with by the Company and itis in agreement with the books of Bocounts

(il Weful defouiter
The Cempany fas nol besn deciared wilful defauler by any bank or Brancial mstiution or govemment of any gavemment authorily

{lv) Relationship with struck off companiss
The Gompany has no transactions wilh the companies struck off ender Compani es Aol, 2013 or Companies Act, 1958,

(vl Compllance with numbar of leyers of companies
The Company has cormplied with the number of leyers prescribed under ihe Companles Add, 2013
{vl} Compllance with spprovad schema(s) of errangements
The Compsny his nol enteréd iflo any scherns of Srangerman! which has &n accounlng impie! on eurrend or previous Bpancial yes
Utlliwation of barrowed funds and share pramium
The Company has nol advancad or loaned or invesied funds 1o any other person(s) of enlity(les), Inciuding foreign antles (Intarmedisdes) with e

understanding hat e Inlermediary shal
fa) drecty o indireclly land of wesl b oihet persona of enfibes [danliféed n any mamed whalsoevar by of on behalf of the Compeany (Ullimat=
Bengfl clanias) or

[b) provide By guaranbee, sacurity or e B o oor on bahalf of tha ulimate baneficinmes
Tha Company has nol recelved any fund from amy personds) or entily[es), Including fomeign anliiles (Funding Porty) with the undersiending [whather

recorded |n wiillng or cthenwiss) et the group shait
{m) directly o indirecty land ar invest i other parsons of antit ea
Banaficiaries) o
{b) provide any guarantes sscurty or the ke on behall of the ut Jf

W

(il

@:+91-73035045 55,
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Neotes to Financlal Statements as at and for the year ended on 31st March, 2024
{all Rgures are stated in Ae. Lakhs, unless otherwiss stated)

Undisciosed Incoma

There & no incomse surreEndarnsd of dieciosed as INcoma duing the curmant OF Drevious yaar in the tex Essexsments under ha Income Tex Act, 1861,
that has not baen reconded i the books of account.

Detalls of crypio cumency or viftual currency
The Company has nat traded o mvestad in cryplo cuvancy ar witual cumancy during the cument or pravious yamr
Valgatlon of PPRE, Intanglble snsel and Invesimant proparty

The Company doss nol heve any propery, plant end equipment (ncluding right-of-use assels) or Inkanpitiea sssets or both during the current of

pravious year,

In e opinicn of the Boand, the current assets, loans & edvances, have 8 value on reslization in the ordinary couwrse of business of leasd equal io the
amount gt which thay are siated n the Balance Sheel

Contract Balances
Movamant in Contract Asssts del no the vear @ os under:

B wnded on 3181
B In':h” m“bﬂ

a7 B45.23

Summary of ad juatmenin/regrouping In pravious yesr figures ore sa folows:
Prewvious year figuras have been re-grouped, re-worked snd re-clessified wherevar nacessary, ' maka tham comparabie with cument year/period

figuras.
Balence Sheet:
B : .
o] (e gl b i aglonin B0 As ot tat April, 2022
Won Gurrent Trade | Other Non GUTRND oo ==
Recsivanie financia| sssets 2,
Currant Trade | Odher Cumant fimancial
Receivabla misely B,280.651 725208
““ﬁ“ﬁ“ Borrawings - Cument 2017 {5
Other ficanc:al
labiitias - Curany | CHer currant llabiities i

The Company uses an pocoeniing software (Taly) o

An par our report of ovon dato attached

For Glanandar & Associries

mainisining #s books of account which hias & fagture of recomding audit el {edit log) faclity
and fie sama hss bean enabled from 10th Moy 20 end operaied throughout the year for all refevant Uensactions mcorded n e sccounting
software. Furihar no instence of audit bl Faahura baing lsmpared with was noted n respect of the accounting software,

Presently, Ine bbg hea been aciiveted ot (e applsabion ond the privileged access b Tolly conlinues B be restricied o lmiled sot of users wha
necessarily requira this scoess for maintenance and administratlon of the datobane

Financial shatemnents are approved for ssue by The Company's Baard Of Directors on a6 28h May 2024 (x

For and on behalf of the board

N

ﬂlhl uma&

n
PoojaM mﬁ. *"""‘

Company Secretary
IC51 M No. AdB700

(: +91-7303504555

B4: gcl@ gawarin




